
 
 
 
 
 

Investment Sub-committee 
Monday, December 7, 2020 

Stephanie McCormick, Chair 
 

Finance Committee Goal:  Make The Family Tree a strong and viable organization.  
 

AGENDA 
 
   

1. Welcome, Introductions & Mission Moment  Stephanie/Pat 
 

2.  Morgan Stanley Annual Review   K Strosnider and T. Alcala  
  

3.  Approval of Sep 20 Minutes    Stephanie 

4.  Portfolio Net Worth & Performance Summary Phil  
 

5.  Announcements     Pat  

 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9596011293 

 
Meeting ID: 959 601 1293 
One tap mobile 

 
+13017158592,,9596011293# US 

 

 
  

Important Dates 
 
 

General Board Meeting, Tuesday, January 14, 2019 at 5:30pm @ TBD 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9596011293


 
 

Investment Committee Conference Call Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

 
MINUTES 

 
The meeting began at 12:00p.m.   
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Tom McDonald, Denise Weglicki, Josh Slater, Stephanie McCormick 
(Chair), Ted Smith, John Meyerhoff   
 
STAFF PRESENT: Phil Saracino, Mary Francioli, Pat Cronin  
 
Guest:  
 
AGENDA OVERVIEW:  

1. Welcome & Mission Moments  
2. Approval of Minutes 
3. Net Worth/Performance Summary & Other Reports 
4. FY 20 Weinberg Drawdown & MUPMIFA 
5.  Announcements 

 
 
RECORDER: 
 
 
Phil Saracino 

__________________ 
Phil Saracino 



Investment Committee 

Minutes – September 14, 2020 
 
 
 AGENDA ITEM #1 WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS  
 
Stephanie McCormick Chair, welcomed the Committee, and the Pat Cronin shared highlights of 
FY 20 pivot to a new way doing business during COVID times 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2. - Approval of Minutes 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION:  Minutes of the May 2020 were reviewed and approved by the 
committee.  Despite discussion of potentially raising some cash at the May meeting, no sales 
occurred between meetings.  Phil gave an update as to the currently good cash positioning and 
the measures management has taken to reduce cash outflows    
   
AGENDA ITEM # 3- Net Worth/Performance Summary & other reports. 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION:   
 
The finance Director reviewed a portfolio snapshot that included portfolio balances, performance 
summary, dividend and capital gain distributions, allocations, fees and performance versus the 
blended index.   
 
The portfolio had almost $3.2 million invested ($1.9 Next Gen and $1.1 Weinberg) at 8/31/20.  
The portfolio in its entirety is allocated to 72% equities and 28% Fixed Income, which is well 
within the allowed range of the Investment policy goal allocation.  It is also allocated 52% in 
actively managed funds versus 48% passively managed.  
 
The portfolio is off to a strong start in this fiscal year. It was up 2.4% in August and 5.9% in the 
fiscal year after being flat in FY 19.  FYTD the portfolio has generated almost $1,500 of 
dividends and Capital Gains most of which gets reinvested. 
 
The performance of our actively managed portfolio at CYTD, 1YR, 3YR & 5YR time frames 
underperformed that of a blended index that mimics our Investment policy allocation.   One of 
the primary reasons was our holding of about 10% in cash and short-term Fixed Income Funds 
which is lagging the benchmark. 
 
The committee also reviewed Morgan Stanley’s mutual fund performance analysis and 
requested that some minor modifications be made to the report going forward. 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #4  FY 20 Weinberg Drawdown & MUPMIFA 
 
 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION:     
   
 
The September investment committee meeting is the meeting when we usually decide on the 
previous year’s Weinberg distribution. Based on the endowment agreement we can take 
approximately $50,000 in FY 21.   After reviewing the 7 MUPMIFA prudence factors, the 
committee unanimously agreed to take the distribution. They also agreed with MS’ 
recommendation of taking the funds from the International sleeve of the investments as that 
portfolio allocation has crept higher recently and in doing so are able to take some gains off the 
table.  There was also some discussion as to potentially redeploying cash in the portfolio but the 
committee ultimately decided that keeping some money on the sidelines for now is prudent. 



Investment Committee 

Minutes – September 14, 2020 
 
 
Phil will reach out to Morgan Stanley and instruct them to generate $50,000 from the Weinberg 
Endowment fund by selling $40,000 worth of the First Eagle Global Fund and $10,000 of the 
MFS International Value Fund.  The funds generated will be shifted to the Organization’s 
Operating Checking Account at M&T bank. 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #5 Announcements 
 
Mary talked about our upcoming events. 
 
 
 
 
 
The next committee meeting will be 12/7/20 at noon and will be held via ZOOM. 
 
The investment advisors will be invited to perform their Annual Review. 
 
 
 



  

  

  

  

  
  

  

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PPllaannnniinngg  DDiissccuussssiioonn   
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

PPRREEPPAARREEDD  FFOORR  

Family Tree 

 
 

 

BBYY  

 

The Strosnider Dudderar Wealth Management Group  
 
 

 

 

PPrreesseenntteedd  OOnn::  

December 7, 2020 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 

 
1. H & J Weinberg Foundation – Portfolio Review  

 
2. H & J Weinberg Foundation – Asset Allocation   

 
3. Next Generation – Portfolio Review  

 
4. Next Generation – Asset Allocation   

 
5. Fund Performance Analysis (fund profiles in separate attachment) 

 
6. Global Investment Committee Market Commentary  

 
7. Items for Discussion  

 
8. Statement of Investment Objectives & Policies 

 
 
 

























Current Asset Allocation 

Asset Class $ Amount % of Portfolio

Cash - Money Market $48,161 4.5%

Fixed Income $268,749 25.1%

Large Cap $361,372 33.8%

Mid Cap $112,274 10.5%

Small Cap $76,285 7.1%

International $171,190 16.0%

Emerging Markets $32,523 3.0%

Totals: $1,070,554 100%

Investment Policy Statement Target Asset Allocation

Asset Class $ Amount % of Portfolio

Cash - Money Market $0 0.0%

Fixed Income* $321,166 30.0%

Large Cap $374,694 35.0%

Mid Cap $107,055 10.0%

Small Cap $107,055 10.0%

International (Includes Emerging Markets) $160,583 15.0%

Totals: $1,070,554 100%

* Fixed Income Including Cash

This material has been prepared for informational purposes only and is not an offer to buy or sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument

or to participate in any trading strategy. This is not a research report and was not prepared by the Research Departments of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated or Citigroup

Global Markets Inc. The views and opinions contained in this material are those of the author(s) and may differ materially from the views and opinions of others at Morgan Stanley

Smith Barney or any of its affiliate companies. Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. Please refer to important information, disclosures and

qualifications at the end of this material.

H & J Weinberg Foundation
Prepared by The Strosnider Dudderar Wealth Management Group

As of November 30, 2020

70.4% Equities / 25.1% Fixed Income / 4.5% Cash

70% Equities / 30% Fixed Income / 0% Cash

5%

25%

34%

10%

7%

16%

3%

Asset Allocation

Cash - Money Market Fixed Income

Large Cap Mid Cap

Small Cap International

Emerging Markets

30%

35%

10%

10%

15%

Asset Allocation

Cash - Money Market

Fixed Income*

Large Cap

Mid Cap

Small Cap

International (Includes Emerging Markets)

























Current Asset Allocation 

Asset Class $ Amount % of Portfolio

Cash - Money Market $92,234 4.6%

Fixed Income $421,989 21.3%

Large Cap $747,413 37.7%

Mid Cap $205,694 10.4%

Small Cap $160,574 8.1%

International $314,223 15.8%

Emerging Markets $42,114 2.1%

Totals: $1,984,242 100%

Investment Policy Statement Target Asset Allocation

Asset Class $ Amount % of Portfolio

Cash - Money Market $0 0.0%

Fixed Income* $595,273 30.0%

Large Cap $694,485 35.0%

Mid Cap $198,424 10.0%

Small Cap $198,424 10.0%

International (Includes Emerging Markets) $297,636 15.0%

Totals: $1,984,242 100%

* Fixed Income Including Cash

This material has been prepared for informational purposes only and is not an offer to buy or sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument

or to participate in any trading strategy. This is not a research report and was not prepared by the Research Departments of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated or Citigroup

Global Markets Inc. The views and opinions contained in this material are those of the author(s) and may differ materially from the views and opinions of others at Morgan Stanley

Smith Barney or any of its affiliate companies. Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. Please refer to important information, disclosures and

qualifications at the end of this material.

Next Generation
Prepared by The Strosnider Dudderar Wealth Management Group

As of November 30, 2020

74.1% Equities / 21.3% Fixed Income / 4.6% Cash

70% Equities / 30% Fixed Income / 0% Cash

5%

21%

38%

10%

8%

16%
2%

Asset Allocation

Cash - Money Market Fixed Income

Large Cap Mid Cap

Small Cap International

Emerging Markets

30%

35%

10%

10%

15%

Asset Allocation

Cash - Money Market

Fixed Income*

Large Cap

Mid Cap

Small Cap

International (Includes Emerging Markets)



 As of November 30, 2020

Symbol Expense Ratio Total $ Amount Year to Date Return 1 Yr Return 3 Yr Return 5 Yr Return 10 Yr

Columbia Dividend Income Class I GSFTX 0.69% $298,053 4.86% 7.97% 9.22% 11.72% 12.50%

% Rank in Category 14 14 7 4 3

# of Funds in Category 1102 1191 1124 988 718

Russell 1000 Value -1.00% 1.72% 5.25% 8.44% 10.93%

Calvert Equity I CEYIX 0.75% $324,293 22.06% 24.77% 20.94% 17.66% 15.31%

% Rank in Category 71 73 33 40 50

# of Funds in Category 1247 1317 1224 1089 806

S&P 500 14.02% 17.46% 13.17% 13.99% 14.19%

Ishares USA Minimum Volatility USMV 0.15% $402,585 3.25% 5.08% 10.23% 12.04% -

% Rank in Category 93 94 64 58 -

# of Funds in Category 1242 1340 1220 1055 767

MSCI USA Minimum Volatility 3.35% 5.31% 10.40% 12.23% 13.66%

Ishares S&P Midcap 400 IJH 0.07% $320,916 6.69% 9.68% 6.21% 9.95% 11.42%

% Rank in Category 41 41 48 37 27

# of Funds in Category 380 404 375 309 214

S&P Mid Cap 400 6.70% 9.70% 6.26% 10.00% 11.51%

Ishares S&P Smallcap 600 IJR 0.07% $238,650 2.81% 5.89% 4.75% 9.54% 11.83%

% Rank in Category 54 50 38 24 7

# of Funds in Category 628 661 626 514 361

S&P SmallCap 600 Index 2.74% 5.81% 4.72% 9.51% 11.86%

Europacific Growth Class F AEPFX 0.58% $137,913 17.20% 22.23% 8.63% 10.37% 8.04%

% Rank in Category 37 34 49 42 40

# of Funds in Category 444 456 405 322 237

MSCI EAFE Index 3.45% 6.83% 3.77% 6.70% 6.35%

MFS International Value MINIX 0.73% $178,096 15.47% 18.68% 10.24% 11.69% 11.51%

% Rank in Category 48 51 34 26 5

# of Funds in Category 444 456 405 322 237

First Eagle Global SGIIX 0.85% $181,545 4.36% 7.34% 5.11% 7.42% 7.51%

% Rank in Category 44 39 39 20 10

# of Funds in Category 453 461 399 348 205

Mutual Fund/ETF Performance

The Family Tree
Performance Analysis

Prepared by The Strosnider Dudderar Wealth Management Group



Symbol Expense Ratio Total $ Amount Year to Date Return 1 Yr Return 3 Yr Return 5 Yr Return 10 Yr

Ishares Edge MSCI Min Vol EAFE EFAV 0.32% $75,296 -3.01% -1.59% 2.46% 5.15% -

% Rank in Category 91 93 61 73 -

# of Funds in Category 715 764 664 567 -

MSCI EAFE Min Vol Index -2.34% -0.83% 2.70% 5.40% 7.02%

Ishares ESG MSCI EM ETF ESGE 0.25% $76,074 10.59% 18.82% 5.42% - -

% Rank in Category 36 34 31 - -

# of Funds in Category 734 786 699 - -

MSCI EM 10.51% 18.83% 5.31% 11.13% 3.97%

Ishares Short Treasury Bond ETF SHV 0.15% $225,550 0.79% 0.96% 1.65% 1.19% 0.61%

% Rank in Category 73 75 83 92 88

# of Funds in Category 190 209 170 130 61

Blackrock Total Return MAHQX 0.45% $459,489 8.36% 8.64% 5.82% 4.82% 4.61%

% Rank in Category 33 29 30 39 21

# of Funds in Category 581 603 540 458 340

Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index 7.36% 7.28% 5.45% 4.34% 3.71%

T. Rowe Price High Yield Fund PRHYX 0.72% $5,370 3.20% 4.93% 4.74% 6.63% 6.26%

% Rank in Category 55 58 40 27 19

# of Funds in Category 642 677 626 548 350

ML High Yield Master Index 4.18% 6.38% 5.32% 7.46% 6.61%

Blended Index

7.71% 9.72% 7.75% 8.96% 9.47%

Other Notable Indexes

Dow Jones 6.11% 8.09% 9.37% 13.54% 13.17%

NASDAQ 41.64% 47.30% 25.70% 22.67% 20.59%

NASDAQ Composite Index is a market-value-weighted index of all common stocks listed on NASDAQ.  An investment cannot be made directly in a market index.

35% S&P 500 / 10% S&P 400 Mid Cap / 10% S&P 600 Small Cap / 15% 

MSCI EAFE / 30% Barclays US Agg. Bond 

S&P MidCap Index is a widely accepted, unmanaged total return index of 400 domestic stocks measuring the performance of the midsize company segment of the U.S. stock market.  An investment cannot be made directly in a market index.

Russell 3000® Growth Index measures the performance of those Russell 3000 Index companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth values. The stocks in this index are also members of either the Russell 1000 Growth or the Russell 2000 Growth indexes.  An investment cannot be made directly in a market index

Dow Jones Industrial Average is a price-weighted index of the 30 “blue-chip” stocks and serves as a measure of the U.S. market, covering such diverse industries as financial services, technology, retail, entertainment and consumer goods. An investment cannot be made directly in a market index.

Barclays Capital 5-10 Government/Credit Bond Index is a total return index consisting of investment grade corporate debt issues as well as debt issues of U.S. government agencies and the U.S. Treasury. The debt issues all maintain maturities within a range of five to ten years.  An investment cannot be made directly in a market index.

The MSCI EAFE
®
 Index (Europe, Australasia, Far East) is a free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to measure developed market equity performance, excluding the US & Canada. As of May 2005 the MSCI EAFE Index consisted of the following 21 developed market country indices: Australia, Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hong Kong, Ireland, Italy, Japan, the Netherlands, New 

Zealand, Norway, Portugal, Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.  An investment cannot be made directly in a market index.

S&P 500 Index is an unmanaged, market value-weighted index of 500 stocks generally representative of the broad stock market. An investment cannot be made directly in a market inex. 

The information for this performance has been derived from sources believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy. Availability, prices and yields of the securities listed are subject to change.  Performance quoted is based on past performance. You should consider the fund's investment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses carefully before investing. For additional information call your Smith Barney Financial Advisor, 
TheStrosnider Group at 1-800-837-5833 ext. 5389. 



Wealth Management Perspectives 



Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other 
financial instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. This slide sourced from Market Performance section.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT GLOBAL INVESTMENT OFFICE |  CHARTBOOK  |  MARKET PERFORMANCE 

Capital Markets Overview: 3Q 2020
Introduction 

Quarterly Update as of September 30, 2020 and Forecasts as of November 30, 2020

Source: FactSet, Bloomberg, Morgan Stanley & Co. Research, Morgan Stanley Wealth Management GIC

• The S&P 500 saw continued moderate gains in the third quarter, following a sharp rally in the second quarter, and despite volatility in 

September. Equities rallied 8.9%  on the quarter, following a quarter in which they gained 20.5%. Equities continued to rally despite a selloff in 

September and investor uncertainty surrounding the passage of a second fiscal stimulus plan; Fed ambiguity on Quantitative Easing and 

average inflation targeting details; 2020 potential presidential election results; and COVID vaccine timing, as well as expectations for rising 

cases as we head into the colder season. International developed equities have underperformed the US on the quarter, while emerging markets 

have very slightly outperformed US equities. Morgan Stanley & Co. U.S. Equity Strategy has a 3,900 price target on the S&P 500 to December 

2021.

• After the S&P 500 sectors finished the second quarter posting strong returns, the sectors finished the third quarter with a more moderate 

performance. While Tech, Energy, and Consumer Discretionary were the top-performing sectors in 2Q20, returning 30.5%, 30.5%, and 32.9%, 

respectively, Consumer Discretionary, Materials, and Industrials were the top-performing sectors in 3Q20, returning 15.06%, 13.31%, and 

12.48%, respectively. Laggards included Energy, Real Estate, and Financials despite still increasing by -19.72%, 1.92%, and 4.45%, respectively.

Other major US indices were also up for the quarter: The Dow Jones Industrial Average rose 8.2% and the NASDAQ Composite rose 11.2%.

• The MSCI EAFE Index (a benchmark for international developed markets) rose 4.9% while the MSCI Emerging Markets Index rose 9.7% for the 

quarter. Although underperforming US equities for the quarter, international developed markets outperformed the month of September by 109 

basis points. Emerging markets outperformed US equities for the quarter by 120 basis points.

• The US aggregate bond market was positive for a consecutive quarter and outperformed on an absolute but not on a relative basis as investors 

took on more risk within pro-recovery trades. The Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index, a general measure of the bond market, rose 

0.62%.

• Morgan Stanley & Co. economists expect US real GDP will be -2.5% in Q4 2020,  but forecast positive GDP growth for 2021 as economic 

recovery continues.

• Commodities were up in the second quarter; the Bloomberg Commodity Index rose by 9.0% and Gold rose by 5.9%.



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  MONTHLY PERSPECTIVES 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

Bull Market Intact, but Need Consolidation Followed by Rotation & Higher Rates  

• 4 Reasons to Remain Bullish: (1) New bull markets begin with a recession and have typically run for years.  (2) The health crisis that 

triggered this recession has brought unprecedented monetary and fiscal stimulus that is likely to become structural in nature. (3) Economic 

data surprises and earnings revisions support our V-Shaped recovery. (4) Sentiment and positioning have remained remarkably skeptical 

considering the size and persistence of the equity rally.  

• 4 Reasons for a Likely Correction: (1) Breadth of the rally and economic data surprises have deteriorated. (2) Congressional gridlock on 

CARES 2 fiscal stimulus package creates doubt about whether this bill can get passed in a timely fashion. and (3) Fed’s new inflation 

targeting scheme in the absence of yield caps opens the door for potentially much higher back-end rates than markets are expecting if 

CARES 2 passes. (4) Election uncertainty.  

• V-Shaped Recovery Happening Even Faster than We Expected. The Fed’s unprecedented response, in conjunction with Congress, has 

driven a strong recovery from the depths of this recession.  While there is a long way to go to get back to prior output levels, the economic 

data surprises and earnings revisions suggest we are well on our way.   

• Barbell of Growth and Cyclicals with a Skew Toward Small/Mid Caps.  In line with our recession playbook, we continue to recommend a 

mix of high-quality growth stocks with the biggest potential beneficiaries of a continued recovery—i.e. cyclicals. Focus on companies that 

are likely to deliver the most operating leverage as business returns.  This is likely to include some lower-quality stocks that would be 

survivors on the recession and in position to take share and leverage their lower cost structures. 

• Our US style and sector recommendations reflect this view.  Overweight small/mid over large, Financials, Consumer Cyclicals, Materials, 

Industrials, and Healthcare.  Underweight Tech, Utilities, and Consumer Staples. 

• Inflation is the Key to the Secular Bull Market for Stocks and Secular Bear Market for Bonds. The shift in policy from monetary to fiscal 

dominance is something we have been waiting for to make a more aggressive call on inflation and equities.  A US recession was always a 

necessary condition for this outcome, and now we have it.  The health crisis nature of this event further supports this potential outcome.  

Finally, don’t forget the other inflationary trends that were well established before this recession began—populism, nationalism, de-

globalization, and a sign that the US dollar may either lose or have to share its reserve currency status.   

• We Recommend Being Overweight to Equities and Credit, Underweight Interest Rate Risk—i.e., Duration. We also recommend 

owning some commodities as another inflation hedge. Avoid profitless growth stocks and pure bond proxies/defensives. Cash is not king 

with front-end rates at zero and rising inflation risks.  There will be moments of doubt and uncertainty about the recovery if a second wave 

of the virus returns, US/China trade relations flare up, and uncertainty around the US election persists.  We would use any pullbacks around 

this doubt as buying opportunities for stocks, led by US cyclicals, international and small/mid caps.   

As of October 14, 2020 

Source:  Morgan Stanley & Co. Research 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  POSITIONING FOR RECESSION 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2008 2020E

6 Quarters

14 Quarters

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

t-
2

t-
1

t=
0

t+
1

t+
2

t+
3

t+
4

t+
5

t+
6

t+
7

t+
8

t+
9

t+
1

0

t+
1

1

t+
1

2

t+
1

3

t+
1

4

2008 2020 Cycle, MS Forecast

Quarters After 

Recession Start

Real GDP (Index, First Quarter of Recession = 0) 

While the GDP Impact Will Be Severe, We Expect the Recovery 

to be Quicker than Prior Recessions 

As of November 3, 2020 

Number of Quarters to Recover Back to Pre-Recession Level of Real GDP 
As of November 3, 2020 

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, Morgan Stanley & Co. Research, Morgan Stanley Wealth Management Market Strategy Team 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  MONTHLY PERSPECTIVES 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

Fiscal Policy Response Much Greater Than During Great Depression or GFC 

Source: Bloomberg, Morgan Stanley & Co. Research as of September 30, 2020 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  MONTHLY PERSPECTIVES 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

Source: Bloomberg, Morgan Stanley & Co Research as of October 12, 2020 

Small Caps Have Typically Outperformed Large Caps Coming Out of a Recession 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  INVESTMENT THEMES  

 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other 
financial instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

77.8%

60.2%

22.2%

39.8%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Russell 2000 (Small-Cap) S&P 500 (Large-Cap)

International

Revenue

United States

Revenue

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

19
9

0

19
9

2

19
9

4

19
9

6

19
9

8

20
0

0

20
0

2

20
0

4

20
0

6

20
0

8

20
10

20
12

20
14

20
16

20
18

US Recession
Russell 2000 Index (Small-Cap)/S&P 500 Index (Large-Cap)

Add US Small-Cap and Mid-Cap Stocks 

           Source: Bloomberg, Morgan Stanley & Co. Research, Morgan Stanley Wealth Management GIC  

Large-cap US stocks have significantly outperformed small and mid-cap stocks in recent years and that outperformance continued 

through the bear market earlier this year. However, historically, recessions have driven change in leadership, and we don’t see this cycle as 

being different. As markets move toward employing an early-cycle playbook, consider adding US SMID exposure.  

Attractive relative valuations vis-a-vis large-caps and good 

compositional exposure to cyclical sectors like industrials, housing, 

transports and consumer discretionary, which look to benefit from a 

potential V-shaped recovery, have us adding exposure to small- and 

mid-cap stocks.  Beyond the recession recovery trade, we also see 

small- and mid-caps benefitting longer term from post COVID-19 

virus structural trends—those trends related to increased 

investments in healthcare and infrastructure as well as de-

globalization and re-onshoring of supply chains. 

Attractive Relative Valuations for SMID US Stocks 

Small-Caps Have Underperformed Since 2014, but a Change in 

Style Leadership Could Be Unfolding 

Data as of  November 2, 2020 

A Number of Factors May Lead to SMID Outperformance 

Small- and Mid-Cap  Indices Have Higher Exposure to Domestic 

Revenues as Large-Cap Stocks Face Supply Chain Headwinds 

Z
 

Data as of November 2, 2020 

• With large-cap indices outperforming small-cap indices by 59.6% since 

the start of 2014, on a relative basis small-and-mid-cap stocks are 

pricing in more fundamental risk than large-cap peers. 

• Small-cap stocks have tended to outperform early in an economic and 

market cycle; as the US potentially moves from recession to recovery 

in 2H20, macro backdrop could favor SMID exposure. 

• Small- and mid-cap companies tend to be more domestically oriented 

than large-cap companies, with ~80% of SMID revenues coming from 

the US; these stocks may benefit more from US fiscal stimulus.  

As of November 2020 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  INVESTMENT THEMES  

 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other 
financial instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.9

2.1

1
9

8
0

1
9

8
2

1
9

8
4

1
9

8
6

1
9

8
8

1
9

9
0

1
9

9
2

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
6

1
9

9
8

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
8

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
8

2
0

2
0

US Recession Russell Growth / Russell Value

0.80

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

1.1

2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

Average:

Prefer Value Over Growth   

Source: Bloomberg, FactSet, Morgan Stanley Wealth Management GIC. Growth and Value represented by their respective Russell 1000 indices. 

Growth stocks have sharply outperformed value stocks since 2007, and for good reason. But recessions historically have brought leadership shifts, and 

we don’t think this time will be different—with value stocks historically inexpensive relative to growth, we expect the 2020 recession to drive a  

reversal back in value’s favor. Financials, Healthcare and Industrials could become new leaders while Technology, last cycle’s outperformer, could lag. 

Growth stocks have sharply outperformed value stocks since 2007. But just as 

the 2001 recession brought about a leadership shift in favor of value, and the 

2008/2009 recession brought a leadership shift in favor of growth, the likely 

2020 recession could be the catalyst that drives a rotation back in value's 

favor. Given the extent of underperformance in recent years, value stocks look 

historically inexpensive relative to growth stocks, and value stock 

fundamentals are more levered to an economic recovery coming out of 

recession. The GIC expects new sector leadership to emerge in the aftermath 

of this bear market, with value-heavy sectors like Financials, Healthcare and 

Industrials becoming new leaders, while the growth-heavy leaders of the last 

cycle, namely Technology and Internet stocks, could underperform.  

Expect Value Leadership to Return Following 2020 Recession 

• On a forward P/E Basis, the Russell 1000 Value Index is approaching all-time 

low valuation relative to the Russell 1000 Growth Index, with Value trading 

at a near 45% discount to Growth. 

• Should interest rates move higher, value stocks may benefit given large 

weighting in Financials; growth stocks, on the other hand, would likely 

underperform as future earnings would be discounted back at higher rates. 

• Technology/Internet stocks now make up almost 50% of the S&P 500 and 

trade at a premium to the broader market; with such heavy concentration 

already in this pocket of the market, we think it will be difficult for the 

sector to outperform going forward. 

A Number of Factors Could Drive Value Outperformance 

Recessions Have Driven Leadership Shifts Between Growth and 

Value Historically – We Expect This Time to Be No Different  
Daily as of October 31, 2020  

On a Forward P/E Basis, Value Stocks Are Near Historic Levels of Low 

Valuation Relative to Growth  
Daily as of October 31, 2020  

As of November 2020 



Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other 
financial instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |   WEEKLY DIGEST

Current Indicators: Global Macro Factor Heat Map

Source: Morgan Stanley Wealth Management GIC. Text in a factor box denotes a color change. 

As of November 27, 2020

Weekly Focus

Global Macro Factor Heat Map

Short-Term Trend:

Economic 

Growth
Rates

Inflation / 

Deflation
Liquidity

Sentiment 

And Risk
Valuation Earnings GIC Conclusion

Europe 0 -1 -1 1 0 0 0 1

China 1 -1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Japan -1 -1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Brazil 0 1 0 1 0 -1 0 1

Risk Asset 

Positive
Neutral

Risk Asset 

Negative

 

Valuations Still 

Discounting Recession, 

Fundamentals 

Improving on Margins

Could Benefit from 

Post Coronavirus  

Stimulus and V-

Shaped Recovery

Could Benefit When 

Currency Markets 

Stabilize

Awaiting Fiscal 

Stimulus



Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other 
financial instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |   WEEKLY DIGEST

GIC Recommendations: Tactical Portfolio Construction Advice

As of October 2020

Source: Morgan Stanley Wealth Management GIC. Note: ++ is most attractive, + is moderately attractive, 0 is neutral, - is moderately unattractive, -- is most unattractive.

Equities

++ + 0 + ++ Themes

US Global
Earnings revisions

and COVID recovery

Value Growth
Real rates affect 

multiples

Small Large

Quality Junk

Defensives Cyclicals
Financials,  REITs, 

Energy

Active Passive

Active management

outlook continue to

improve

Hedged Unhedged

Unhedged in both 

Europe

and Japan

Asset Allocation

Cash Equities Fixed Income Alternatives

Underweight Overweight Equalweight Equalweight

Fixed Income

++ + 0 + ++ Themes

Rates Credit
Attractive 

risk/reward

Short

Duration

Long

Duration

Ladder 3 months to 

3 years

Taxable
Non-

Taxable

IG HY
Spreads wider

versus history

US Int'l Non-sovereign

Developed
Emerging

Markets

Alternatives

++ + 0 + ++ Themes

Low Inflation

Protection

High

Inflation

Protection

TIPs, Commodities

Low

Volatility

High

Volatility

Global macro, 

managed

futures

Low

Leverage/

Alpha

High

Leverage/

Alpha

Equity L/S, event 

driven

Private Alternatives

-- - 0 + ++ Themes

Private 

Equity

Small and middle market buyout,

secondaries, co-investments,

VC/growth equity

Private 

Credit

Asset backed, structured credit, 

distressed

Private Real 

Estate

Secondaries, demographic

trends, non-major markets

Portfolio Construction



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  POSITIONING FOR RECESSION 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 

• The US officially entered a recession in February, according to the National Bureau of Economic Research, ending the 130-month expansion 

that began in March 2009. As lockdowns were imposed across much of the world this spring, a “sudden stop” in economic activity triggered 

the “Great Covid Recession,” which will likely be remembered as one of the sharpest and deepest recessions in history.    

 

• While the global pandemic may have been the catalyst for recession, it is important to remember the US economy was already in ‘late-cycle’ 

territory coming into the year. The rate of change in economic data largely peaked following the 2018 tax-reform-driven capex surge, and 

forward-looking manufacturing and corporate confidence surveys had already been declining throughout 2019. The Fed’s over-tightening in 

2018 also likely contributed to the slowdown, and market internals were pointing to a deteriorating economic outlook even before COVID-

19—recall last year’s stunning rally in long-term Treasuries, yield-curve inversion, and underperformance of cyclical vs defensive equities.  

 

• With the health crisis triggering recession, however, the fiscal and monetary reaction has been much greater than what we would have seen 

ordinarily in recession. With the Federal Reserve quickly cutting rates to zero and expanding its balance sheet by more than $3 trillion year to 

date, coupled with the US government enacting the $2+ Trillion CARES Act stimulus package, a one-two punch of fiscal and monetary policy 

has been delivered in the US. Record levels of stimulus should help drive a swifter recovery once the health crisis is resolved.  

 

• MS & Co. economists believe the global economy is likely to experience a V-shaped recovery in the coming quarters. Following a sharp two-

quarter recession in 1H20, MS & Co. expects the US economy to return to 4Q19 GDP levels by mid 2021; a six-quarter peak-to-peak recovery 

would be less than half the time it took the economy to recover following the Global Financial Crisis a decade ago. 

 

• As lockdowns recede, data supports a V-shaped recovery narrative as well. Following the steep job losses in March and April, the US 

economy has now seen five consecutive months of payroll gains through September. The unemployment rate has also fallen to 7.9 percent. 

Consumer activity has also bounced back, with Retail Sales recovering to new all-time highs in June and strength has continued in recent 

months. Collectively, economic data has been coming in well ahead of expectations, with the US Economic Surprise indices moving to all-

time highs this summer.   

 

• The GIC believes investors should continue to employ an early-cycle  playbook as the economy moves toward recovery into next year. This 

means favoring cyclical assets in the early stages of a new economic cycle—i.e., stocks over bonds at the asset class level, and within 

equities, favor cyclicals over defensives and small caps over large caps.  

Source:  Bloomberg, US Bureau of Labor Statistics, Morgan Stanley & Co. Research, Morgan Stanley Wealth Management Investment Resources Market Strategy Team  

Positioning for Recession and Potential Recovery 
As of November 3, 2020 



WEALTH MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT RESOURCES  |  CHARTBOOK  |  POSITIONING FOR RECESSION 

Positioning for Recession and Potential Recovery: Bottom Line 

Source:  Morgan Stanley Wealth Management Investment Resources Market Strategy Team 

As of November 3, 2020 

Portfolio Implications 

 

History shows that recessions can occur within the context of a secular bull market—we 

believe the 2020 bear market fits within this trend.  

Markets priced a steep decline in economic activity as several indicators reached 

recessionary levels. While the severity of the impact from COVID-19 was acute, the recovery 

might be just as sharp; therefore, investors should remain data driven. The worst appears to 

be behind us, and investors should consider positioning for a new economic cycle to begin. 

What We Are Watching Watch market signals and key economic data, including: 

• Fiscal spending measures in the US and abroad 

• Continued monetary accommodation from Fed, ECB, and global central banks 

• New COVID-19 cases and declining growth 

• Economic data, including ISM PMIs, unemployment, jobless claims 

• Trends in volatility measures, including the VIX and MOVE 

• Weakening US dollar and tightening credit spreads may indicate a trough in investor 

sentiment 

• Corporate earnings into 4Q20 and 2021 

 

 

 
Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. This material is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security or other financial instrument or to participate 
in any trading strategy. Please refer to important information, disclosures and qualifications at the end of this material. 



 !"#$%&'($%)*+&,*$)(-& $%$#*.*%(&/0&(-*&("$1*&%$.*&!2& !"#$%&'($%)*+&'./(-&3$"%*+&4456&$&"*#/0(*"*1&7"!8*"91*$)*"&/%&(-*&:%/(*1&'($(*0;

 !"#$%&"#'()'%$"#%*#+!,$#-.+"),.&#,$#+%#,/*%)-0#./1#,+#,/#/%#2.3#,$#,/+"/1"1#+%#4"#./#%5")#%)#$%&,6,+.+,%/#+%#'()6!.$"#%)#$"&&#./3#$"6(),+30#%+!")#,/7"$+-"/+#%)#$")7,6"0#%)#+%#.++).6+#./3#*(/1$#%)#1"'%$,+$8#

9/7"$+-"/+$#-"/+,%/"1#-.3#/%+#4"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#6&,"/+$8#:/3#')%1(6+#1,$6($$"1#!")",/#-.3#4"#'()6!.$"1#%/&3#.*+")#.#6&,"/+#!.$#6.)"*(&&3#)"7,"2"1#+!"#%5"),/;#-"-%)./1(-#./1#"<"6(+"1#+!"#

$(4$6),'+,%/#1%6(-"/+$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#!.$#/%+#6%/$,1")"1#+!"#.6+(.&#%)#1"$,)"1#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$0#;%.&$0#$+).+";,"$0#;(,1"&,/"$0#%)#*.6+(.&#6,)6(-$+./6"$#%*#./3#,/7"$+%)#,/#

./3#*(/1A$B8#C"*%)"#-.D,/;#./3#,/7"$+-"/+0#".6!#,/7"$+%)#$!%(&1#6.)"*(&&3#6%/$,1")#+!"#),$D$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+0#.$#1,$6($$"1#,/#+!"#.''&,6.4&"#%5"),/;#-"-%)./1(-0#./1#-.D"#.#

1"+")-,/.+,%/#4.$"1#('%/#+!",)#%2/#'.)+,6(&.)#6,)6(-$+./6"$0#+!.+#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#,$#6%/$,$+"/+#2,+!#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$#./1#),$D#+%&")./6"8#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF#%5")$#

,/7"$+-"/+#')%;).-#$")7,6"$#+!)%(;!#.#7.),"+3#%*#,/7"$+-"/+#')%;).-$0#2!,6!#.)"#%'"/"1#'()$(./+#+%#2),++"/#6&,"/+#.;)""-"/+$8#G.6!#')%;).-#%5")$#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$0#*(/1$#./1#*".+()"$#+!.+#

.)"#/%+#.7.,&.4&"#,/#%+!")#')%;).-$H#6%/7")$"&30#$%-"#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$0#*(/1$#%)#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#-.3#4"#.7.,&.4&"#,/#-%)"#+!./#%/"#')%;).-8

=%);./#>+./&"3I$#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$#-.3#)"J(,)"#.#-,/,-(-#.$$"+#&"7"&#./10#1"'"/1,/;#%/#3%()#$'"6,K6#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$#./1#K/./6,.&#'%$,+,%/0#-.3#/%+#4"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#3%(8#

L&".$"#$""#+!"#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF#')%;).-#1,$6&%$()"#4)%6!()"#A+!"#M=%);./#>+./&"3#:NOPB#*%)#-%)"#,/*%)-.+,%/#,/#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$#.7.,&.4&"8# !"#=%);./#>+./&"3#

:NO#,$#.7.,&.4&"#.+#2228-%);./$+./&"386%-Q:NO8#'!<"=*0&!2&>$($;&9/*%)-.+,%/#,/#+!,$#-.+"),.&#,/#+!,$#)"'%)+#!.$#4""/#%4+.,/"1#*)%-#$%()6"$#+!.+#2"#4"&,"7"#+%#4"#)"&,.4&"0#4(+#2"#1%#/%+#;(.)./+""#

,+$#.66().630#6%-'&"+"/"$$#%)#+,-"&,/"$$8# !,)1R'.)+3#1.+.#')%7,1")$#-.D"#/%#2.))./+,"$#%)#)"')"$"/+.+,%/$#)"&.+,/;#+%#+!"#.66().630#6%-'&"+"/"$$#%)#+,-"&,/"$$#%*#+!"#1.+.#+!"3#')%7,1"#./1#.)"#/%+#

&,.4&"#*%)#./3#1.-.;"$#)"&.+,/;#+%#+!,$#1.+.8#:&&#%',/,%/$#,/6&(1"1#,/#+!,$#-.+"),.&#6%/$+,+(+"#+!"#S,)-I$#@(1;-"/+#.$#%*#+!"#1.+"#%*#+!,$#-.+"),.&#./1#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#6!./;"#2,+!%(+#/%+,6" 8# !,$#-.+"),.&#

2.$#/%+#')"'.)"1#43#+!"#)"$".)6!#1"'.)+-"/+$#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#T#F%8#EEF#%)#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF8#>%-"#!,$+%),6.&#K;()"$#-.3#4"#)"7,$"1#1("#+%#/"2&3#,1"/+,K"1#')%;).-$0#K)-#

)"$+.+"-"/+$0#"+68

?)!7$)&@%A*0(.*%(& $%$#*"&B%$)+0/0&C?@ BD&E!=<0&4/0(6&BFF"!A*1&4/0(&$%1&G$=(/=$)&HFF!"(<%/(/*0&4/0(I&,$(=-&J!)/=+;&U9=:#($"$#+2%#-"+!%1$#+%#"7.&(.+"#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#,/#.''&,6.4&"#

.17,$%)3#')%;).-$V#E!=<0&A./1#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#-""+,/;#+!,$#$+./1.)1#.)"#1"$6),4"1#.$#4",/;#%/#+!"#S%6($#E,$+B#./1#BFF"!A*1&A./1#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#-""+,/;#+!,$#$+./1.)1#.)"#1"$6),4"1#.$#

4",/;#%/#+!"#:'')%7"1#E,$+B8#9/#;"/").&0#S%6($#"/+.,&$#.#-%)"#+!%)%(;!#"7.&(.+,%/#%*#./#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#+!./#:'')%7"18#>%-"+,-"$#./#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#-.3#4"#"7.&(.+"1#($,/;#+!"#S%6($#E,$+#

')%6"$$#4(+#+!"/#'&.6"1#%/#+!"#:'')%7"1#E,$+#,/$+".1#%*#+!"#S%6($#E,$+8#9/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#-.3#-%7"#*)%-#+!"#S%6($#E,$+#+%#+!"#:'')%7"1#E,$+0#%)#7,6"#7")$.8#U9=:#-.3#.&$%#1"+")-,/"#+!.+#./#

,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#/%#&%/;")#-""+$#+!"#6),+"),.#(/1")#",+!")#')%6"$$#./1#2,&&#/%#&%/;")#4"#)"6%--"/1"1#,/#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$#A,/#2!,6!#6.$"#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#,$#;,7"/#.#MW%+#

:'')%7"1P#$+.+($B8#U9=:#!.$#.#X,$(=-P#'%&,63#./1#-.3#1"$6),4"#.#S%6($#E,$+#%)#:'')%7"1#E,$+#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#.$#4",/;#%/#M?.+6!P#,*#U9=:#,1"/+,K"$#$'"6,K6#.)".$#+!.+#A.B#-"),+#*()+!")#"7.&(.+,%/#

43#U9=:#./1#A4B#-.30#4(+#.)"#/%+#6")+.,/#+%0#)"$(&+#,/#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#4"6%-,/;#MW%+#:'')%7"18P# !"#?.+6!#'"),%1#1"'"/1$#%/#+!"#&"/;+!#%*#+,-"#/""1"1#*%)#U9=:#+%#6%/1(6+#,+$#"7.&(.+,%/#

./1#*%)#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")#%)#*(/1#+%#.11)"$$#./3#6%/6")/$8#F")+.,/#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#%/#",+!")#+!"#S%6($#E,$+#%)#:'')%7"1#E,$+#-.3#.&$%#4"#)"6%--"/1"1#*%)#+!"#G$=(/=$)&HFF!"(<%/(/*0&

4/0(&4.$"1#,/#'.)+#%/#+.6+,6.&#%''%)+(/,+,"$#"<,$+,/;#.+#.#;,7"/#+,-"8# !"#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#%/#+!"# .6+,6.&#Y''%)+(/,+,"$#E,$+#6!./;"#%7")#+,-"8#S%)#-%)"#,/*%)-.+,%/#%/#+!"#S%6($#E,$+0#:'')%7"1#E,$+0#

 .6+,6.&#Y''%)+(/,+,"$#E,$+#./1#?.+6!#')%6"$$"$0#'&".$"#$""#+!"#.''&,6.4&"#S%)-#:NO#N,$6&%$()"#N%6(-"/+#*%)#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+8#Z%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#%)#L),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)#

6./#.&$%#')%7,1"#('%/#)"J("$+#.#6%'3#%*#.#'(4&,6.+,%/#"/+,+&"1#M=./.;")#>"&"6+,%/#L)%6"$$8P

 !"#?)!7$)&@%A*0(.*%(&5!../((**&,$#.#;)%('#%*#$".$%/"1#,/7"$+-"/+#')%*"$$,%/.&$#2!%#-""+#)";(&.)&3#+%#1,$6($$#+!"#;&%4.&#"6%/%-3#./1#-.)D"+$8# !"#6%--,++""#1"+")-,/"$#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#

%(+&%%D#+!.+#;(,1"$#%()#.17,6"#+%#6&,"/+$8# !"3#6%/+,/(.&&3#-%/,+%)#1"7"&%',/;#"6%/%-,6#./1#-.)D"+#6%/1,+,%/$0#)"7,"2#+.6+,6.&#%(+&%%D$#./1#)"6%--"/1#-%1"&#'%)+*%&,%#2",;!+,/;$0#.$#2"&&#.$#

')%1(6"#.#$(,+"#%*#$+).+";30#./.&3$,$0#6%--"/+.)30#'%)+*%&,%#'%$,+,%/,/;#$(;;"$+,%/$#./1#%+!")#)"'%)+$#./1#4)%.16.$+$8

 !"#U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$#.)"#/%+#.7.,&.4&"#+%#4"#1,)"6+&3#,-'&"-"/+"1#.$#'.)+#%*#./#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#$")7,6"#./1#$!%(&1#/%+#4"#)";.)1"1#.$#.#)"6%--"/1.+,%/#%*#./3#=%);./#>+./&"3#

,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#$")7,6"8# !"#U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$#1%#/%+#)"')"$"/+#.6+(.&#+).1,/;#%)#./3#+3'"#%*#.66%(/+#%)#./3#+3'"#%*#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#./1#/%/"#%*#+!"#*""$#%)#%+!")#"<'"/$"$#A" 8;8#

6%--,$$,%/$0#-.)DR('$0#-.)DR1%2/$0#.17,$%)3#*""$0#*(/1#"<'"/$"$B#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#.6+(.&#+).1,/;#%)#.66%(/+$#.)"#)"["6+"1#,/#+!"#U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$#2!,6!0#2!"/#6%-'%(/1"1#%7")#.#'"),%1#

%*#3".)$0#2%(&1#1"6)".$"#)"+()/$8

B1A*"0*&B=(/A*&B)F-$' &K;L#,$#.#'.+"/+"1#$6)""/,/;#./1#$6%),/;#')%6"$$#1"$,;/"1#+%#!"&'#,1"/+,*3#!,;!RJ(.&,+3#"J(,+3#./1#K<"1#,/6%-"#-./.;")$#2,+!#6!.).6+"),$+,6$#+!.+#-.3#&".1#+%#*(+()"#

%(+'")*%)-./6"#)"&.+,7"#+%#,/1"<#./1#'"")$8#?!,&"#!,;!&3#)./D"1#-./.;")$#'")*%)-"1#2"&&#.$#.#;)%('#,/#%()#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#-%1"&#4.6D#+"$+$0#/%+#.&&#%*#+!"#-./.;")$#2,&&#%(+'")*%)-8#L&".$"#/%+"#

+!.+#+!,$#1.+.#-.3#4"#1"),7"1#*)%-#4.6DR+"$+,/;0#2!,6!#!.$#+!"#4"/"K+#%*#!,/1$,;!+8#9/#.11,+,%/0#!,;!&3#)./D"1#-./.;")$#6./#!.7"#1,5"),/;#),$D#')%K&"$#+!.+#-,;!+#/%+#4"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8#

Y()#7,"2#,$#+!.+#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#,$#.#;%%1#$+.)+,/;#'%,/+#./1#$!%(&1#4"#($"1#,/#6%/@(/6+,%/#2,+!#%+!")#,/*%)-.+,%/8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+I$#J(.&,+.+,7"#./1#J(./+,+.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+#

-./.;")#1("#1,&,;"/6"#')%6"$$#.)"#"J(.&&3#,-'%)+./+#*.6+%)$#*%)#,/7"$+%)$#2!"/#6%/$,1"),/;#-./.;")$#*%)#($"#+!)%(;!#./#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-8#S.6+%)$#,/6&(1,/;0#4(+#/%+#&,-,+"1#+%0#-./.;")#

+()/%7")#./1#6!./;"$#+%#,/7"$+-"/+#')%6"$$#6./#'.)+,.&&3#%)#*(&&3#/";.+"#.#'%$,+,7"#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#)./D,/;8#:11,+,%/.&&30#!,;!&3#)./D"1#-./.;")$#6./#!.7"#1,5"),/;#),$D#')%K&"$#+!.+#-,;!+#/%+#4"#

 !"#$%"&'("



.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8

 !"#')%'),"+.)3#M$)<*&'=!"*#-"+!%1%&%;3#6%/$,1")$#./#.6+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$I#7.&("#')%'%$,+,%/#)"&.+,7"#+%#,+$#6%$+$8#S)%-#.#!,$+%),6.&#J(./+,+.+,7"#$+(13#%*#$"7").&#J(./+,+.+,7"#-.)D")$0#O.&("#

>6%)"#-".$()"$#'")6",7"1#*%)2.)1R&%%D,/;#4"/"K+#./1#6%-'(+"$#A\B#M*.,)#7.&("P#"<'"/$"#).+,%$#*%)#-%$+#+).1,+,%/.&#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$#.6)%$$#]^#6.+";%),"$#./1#A_B#-./.;")$I#'")6",7"1#M"<6"$$#

7.&("P#43#6%-'.),/;#+!"#*.,)#7.&("#"<'"/$"#).+,%$#+%#.6+(.&#"<'"/$"#).+,%$8#=./.;")$#.)"#+!"/#)./D"1#2,+!,/#".6!#6.+";%)3#43#+!",)#"<6"$$#7.&("#+%#.$$,;/#.#O.&("#>6%)"8#Y()#./.&3$,$#$(;;"$+$#+!.+#

;)".+")#&"7"&$#%*#"<6"$$#7.&("#!.7"#!,$+%),6.&&3#6%))"$'%/1"1#+%#.++).6+,7"#$(4$"J("/+#'")*%)-./6"8

S%)#-%)"#,/*%)-.+,%/#%/#+!"#)./D,/;#-%1"&$0#'&".$"#$""# !"#$%#& '()"#& *+,-./&0123&.'4$)56& '()"#&/-5-6#$%& ''4$!)56&(4&74(#5()-*& *+,-#./1#8-*9#&.'4$#3&.'4$)56&:##&;<')#5'=&>=&?4@+-$)56&

/-5-6#$%A&B:-)$&8-*9#C&-5!& '(9-*&;D+#5%#&E-()4%8# !"#2!,+"'.'")$#.)"#.7.,&.4&"#*)%-#3%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#%)#L),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)8#:NOG`>G#:F 9OG#:ELa:#,$#.#)";,$+")"1#$")7,6"#-.)D#%*#=%);./#

>+./&"3#./1Q%)#,+$#.b&,.+"$8#c8>8#L.+8#W%8#d0efg0^hd#.''&,"$#+%#+!"#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#$3$+"-#./1Q%)#-"+!%1%&%;38

:11,+,%/.&&30#!,;!&3#)./D"1#-./.;")$#6./#!.7"#1,5"),/;#),$D#')%K&"$#+!.+#-,;!+#/%+#4"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8#S%)#-%)"#,/*%)-.+,%/#%/#:::0#'&".$"#$""#+!"#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#`./D,/;#=%1"&#

./1#>"&"6+,/;#=./.;")$#2,+!#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#2!,+"'.'")$8# !"#2!,+"'.'")#.)"#.7.,&.4&"#*)%-#3%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#%)#L),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)8#:NOG`>G#:F 9OG#:ELa:#,$#.#)";,$+")"1#$")7,6"#

-.)D#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#./1Q%)#,+$#.b&,.+"$8#c8>8#L.+8#W%8#d0efg0^hd#.''&,"$#+%#+!"#:17")$"#:6+,7"#:&'!.#$3$+"-#./1Q%)#-"+!%1%&%;38

G-*&?)!7$)&@%A*0(.*%(& $%$#*"&B%$)+0/0&C?@ BD&'*"A/=*0&H%)+&BFF)+&(!&5*"($/%&@%A*0(.*%(&B1A/0!"+&J"!#"$.0&U9=:#"7.&(.+"$#6")+.,/#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#*%)#+!"#'()'%$"$#%*#$%-"#i#4(+#/%+#.&&#

i#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEFI$#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$#A.$#1"$6),4"1#,/#-%)"#1"+.,&#,/#+!"#.''&,6.4&"#S%)-#:NO#N,$6&%$()"#N%6(-"/+#*%)#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+B8#9*#3%(#

1%#/%+#,/7"$+#+!)%(;!#%/"#%*#+!"$"#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$0#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,$#/%+#%4&,;.+"1#+%#')%7,1"#3%(#/%+,6"#%*#./3#U9=:#>+.+($#6!./;"$#"7"/#+!%(;!#,+#-.3#;,7"#

/%+,6"#+%#6&,"/+$#,/#%+!")#')%;).-$8

'("$(*#+& $+&3*&BA$/)$7)*&$0&$&'*F$"$(*)+& $%$#*1&B==!<%(&!"& <(<$)&E<%1&>+).+";,"$#.)"#$%-"+,-"$#.7.,&.4&"#,/#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$#4%+!#,/#+!"#

*%)-#%*#.#$"'.).+"&3#-./.;"1#.66%(/+#AM>=:PB#./1#.#-(+(.&#*(/18# !"$"#-.3#!.7"#1,5")"/+#"<'"/$"$#./1#,/7"$+-"/+#-,/,-(-$8#Z%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#%)#L),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)#6./#')%7,1"#-%)"#

,/*%)-.+,%/#%/#2!"+!")#./3#'.)+,6(&.)#$+).+";3#,$#.7.,&.4&"#,/#-%)"#+!./#%/"#*%)-#,/#.#'.)+,6(&.)#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-8#9/#-%$+#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#

.66%(/+$0#*""$#.)"#1"1(6+"1#J(.)+")&3#./1#!.7"#.#6%-'%(/1,/;#"5"6+#%/#'")*%)-./6"8#S%)#"<.-'&"0#%/#./#.17,$%)3#.66%(/+#2,+!#.#jk#.//(.&#*""0#,*#+!"#;)%$$#.//(.&#'")*%)-./6"#,$#g8^^k0#+!"#

6%-'%(/1,/;#"5"6+#%*#+!"#*""$#2,&&#)"$(&+#,/#.#/"+#'")*%)-./6"#%*#.'')%<,-.+"&3#j8hjk#.*+")#%/"#3".)0#\#.*+")#+!)""#3".)$0#./1#_\8_jk#.*+")#K7"#3".)$8#5!%N/=(0&!2&@%(*"*0(O&U9=:I$#;%.&#,$#+%#')%7,1"#

')%*"$$,%/.&0#%4@"6+,7"#"7.&(.+,%/$#,/#$(''%)+#%*#+!"#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$8#?"#!.7"#'%&,6,"$#./1#')%6"1()"$#+%#!"&'#($#-""+#+!,$#;%.&8#a%2"7")0#%()#

4($,/"$$#,$#$(4@"6+#+%#7.),%($#6%/[,6+$#%*#,/+")"$+8#S%)#"<.-'&"0#,1".$#./1#$(;;"$+,%/$#*%)#2!,6!#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#$!%(&1#4"#"7.&(.+"1#43#U9=:#6%-"#*)%-#.#7.),"+3#%*#$%()6"$0#,/6&(1,/;#%()#=%);./#

>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)$#./1#+!",)#1,)"6+#%)#,/1,)"6+#-./.;")$0#./1#%+!")#4($,/"$$#'")$%/$#2,+!,/#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#%)#,+$#.b&,.+"$8#>(6!#'")$%/$#-.3#!.7"#./#

%/;%,/;#4($,/"$$#)"&.+,%/$!,'#2,+!#6")+.,/#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$#%)#-(+(.&#*(/1#6%-'./,"$#2!")"43#+!"30#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#%)#,+$#.b&,.+"$#)"6",7"#6%-'"/$.+,%/#*)%-0#%)#

%+!")2,$"#)"&.+"1#+%0#+!%$"#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$#%)#-(+(.&#*(/1$8#S%)#"<.-'&"0#.#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#-.3#$(;;"$+#+!.+#U9=:#"7.&(.+"$#./#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")#%)#*(/1#,/#2!,6!#.#'%)+,%/#%*#!,$#%)#!")#

6&,"/+$I#.$$"+$#.)"#.&)".13#,/7"$+"18#?!,&"#$(6!#.#)"6%--"/1.+,%/#,$#'")-,$$,4&"0#U9=:#,$#)"$'%/$,4&"#*%)#+!"#%',/,%/$#"<')"$$"1#43#U9=:8#>""#+!"#6%/[,6+$#%*#,/+")"$+#$"6+,%/#,/#+!"#.''&,6.4&"#S%)-#

:NO#N,$6&%$()"#N%6(-"/+#*%)#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#*%)#.#1,$6($$,%/#%*#%+!")#+3'"$#%*#6%/[,6+$#+!.+#-.3#4"#)"&"7./+#+%#U9=:I$#"7.&(.+,%/#%*#-./.;")$#./1#*(/1$8#9/#.11,+,%/0#=%);./#

>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+0#=>#T#F%80#-./.;")$#./1#+!",)#.b&,.+"$#')%7,1"#.#7.),"+3#%*#$")7,6"$#A,/6&(1,/;#)"$".)6!0#4)%D").;"0#.$$"+#-./.;"-"/+0#+).1,/;0#&"/1,/;#./1#,/7"$+-"/+#4./D,/;#$")7,6"$B#

*%)#".6!#%+!")#./1#*%)#7.),%($#6&,"/+$0#,/6&(1,/;#,$$(")$#%*#$"6(),+,"$#+!.+#-.3#4"#)"6%--"/1"1#*%)#'()6!.$"#%)#$.&"#43#6&,"/+$#%)#.)"#%+!")2,$"#!"&1#,/#6&,"/+#.66%(/+$# 0#./1#-./.;")$#,/#7.),%($#.17,$%)3#

')%;).-$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+0#-./.;")$0#=>#T#F%80#./1#+!",)#.b&,.+"$#)"6",7"#6%-'"/$.+,%/#./1#*""$#,/#6%//"6+,%/#2,+!#+!"$"#$")7,6"$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#

4"&,"7"$#+!.+#+!"#/.+()"#./1#)./;"#%*#6&,"/+$#+%#2!,6!#$(6!#$")7,6"$#.)"#)"/1")"1#,$#$(6!#+!.+#,+#2%(&1#4"#,/.17,$.4&"#+%#"<6&(1"#6.+";%),6.&&3#.&&#%*#+!"$"#6%-'./,"$#*)%-#./#.66%(/+ 8

=%);./#>+./&"3#6!.);"$#".6!#*(/1#*.-,&3#2"#%5")#.#-(+(.&#*(/1#$(''%)+#*""0#.&$%#6.&&"1#.#M)"7"/("R$!.),/;#'.3-"/+0P#%/#6&,"/+#.66%(/+#!%&1,/;$#,/#*(/1#*.-,&,"$#.66%)1,/;#+%#.#+,")"1#).+"#+!.+#

,/6)".$"$#.&%/;#2,+!#+!"#-./.;"-"/+#*""#%*#+!"#*(/1#$%#+!.+#&%2")#-./.;"-"/+#*""#*(/1$#'.3#&%2")#).+"$#+!./#+!%$"#2,+!#!,;!")#-./.;"-"/+#*""$8

Y7")&.3#=./.;")$#%)#G<"6(+,/;#>(4R=./.;")$#AM-./.;")$PB#,/#$%-"#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3I$#>"'.).+"&3#=./.;"1#:66%(/+#AM>=:PB#')%;).-$#-.3#.5"6+#+)./$.6+,%/$#+!)%(;!#4)%D")R1".&")$#%+!")#+!./#

=%);./#>+./&"3#%)#%()#.b&,.+"$8##9*#3%()#-./.;")#+).1"$#2,+!#./%+!")#K)-0#3%(#-.3#4"#.$$"$$"1#6%$+$#43#+!"#%+!")#K)-#,/#.11,+,%/#+%#=%);./#>+./&"3I$#*""$8## !%$"#6%$+$#2,&&#4"#,/6&(1"1#,/#+!"#/"+#

'),6"#%*#+!"#$"6(),+30#/%+#$"'.).+"&3#)"'%)+"1#%/#+).1"#6%/K)-.+,%/$#%)#.66%(/+#$+.+"-"/+$8##F")+.,/#-./.;")$#!.7"#!,$+%),6.&&3#1,)"6+"1#-%$+0#,*#/%+#.&&0#%*#+!",)#+).1"$#+%#%(+$,1"#K)-$8##9/*%)-.+,%/#

')%7,1"1#43#-./.;")$#6%/6")/,/;#+).1"#"<"6(+,%/#.2.3#*)%-#=%);./#>+./&"3#,$#$(--.),l"1#.+V#2228-%);./$+./&"386%-Q2".&+!Q,/7"$+-"/+$%&(+,%/$Q'1*$Q.17Q$%+)"$'%/$"8'1*8##S%)#-%)"#

,/*%)-.+,%/#%/#+).1,/;#./1#6%$+$0#'&".$"#)"*")#+%#+!"#:NO#C)%6!()"#*%)#3%()#')%;).-A$B0#.7.,&.4&"#.+#2228-%);./$+./&"386%-Q:NO0#%)#6%/+.6+#3%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)QL),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)8

 !"#$%"&'("



5!%0/1*"&P!<"&HQ%&@%A*0(.*%(&R**10O& !"#-%1"&#'%)+*%&,%$#./1#$+).+";,"$#1,$6($$"1#,/#+!"#-.+"),.&#.)"#*%)-(&.+"1#4.$"1#%/#;"/").&#6&,"/+#6!.).6+"),$+,6$#,/6&(1,/;#),$D#+%&")./6" 8# !,$#-.+"),.&#,$#/%+#

,/+"/1"1#+%#4"#./#./.&3$,$#%*#2!"+!")#'.)+,6(&.)#,/7"$+-"/+$#%)#$+).+";,"$#.)"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#3%(#%)#.#)"6%--"/1.+,%/0#%)#./#%5")#+%#'.)+,6,'.+"#,/#./3#,/7"$+-"/+8# !")"*%)"0#6&,"/+$#$!%(&1#/%+#($"#

+!,$#')%K&"#.$#+!"#$%&"#4.$,$#*%)#,/7"$+-"/+#1"6,$,%/$8# !"3#$!%(&1#6%/$,1")#.&&#)"&"7./+#,/*%)-.+,%/0#,/6&(1,/;#+!",)#"<,$+,/;#'%)+*%&,%0#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$0#),$D#+%&")./6"0#&,J(,1,+3#/""1$#./1#

,/7"$+-"/+#+,-"#!%),l%/8#>(6!#.#1"+")-,/.+,%/#-.3#&".1#+%#.$$"+#.&&%6.+,%/#)"$(&+$#+!.+#.)"#-.+"),.&&3#1,5")"/+#*)%-#+!"#.$$"+#.&&%6.+,%/#$!%2/#,/#+!,$#')%K&"8# .&D#+%#3%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#.4%(+#2!.+#

2%(&1#4"#./#.'')%'),.+"#.$$"+#.&&%6.+,%/#*%)#3%(0#2!"+!")#FUF=#,$#./#.'')%'),.+"#')%;).-#*%)#3%(8

R!&!7)/#$(/!%&(!&%!(/2+&i#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#!.$#/%#%4&,;.+,%/#+%#/%+,*3#3%(#2!"/#+!"#-%1"&#'%)+*%&,%$0#$+).+";,"$0#%)#./3#%+!")#,/*%)-.+,%/0#,/#+!,$#-.+"),.&#6!./;"$8

J)*$0*&=!%0/1*"&(-*&/%A*0(.*%(&!7S*=(/A*06&"/0806&2**06&$%1&=-$"#*0&$%1&*TF*%0*0&!2&.<(<$)&2<%106&UGE06&=)!0*1&*%1&2<%106&<%/(&/%A*0(.*%(&("<0(06&$%1&A$"/$7)*&/%0<"$%=*&F"!1<=(0&=$"*2<))+&

7*2!"*&/%A*0(/%#;&G-*&F"!0F*=(<0&=!%($/%0&(-/0&$%1&!(-*"&/%2!".$(/!%&$7!<(&*$=-&2<%1;&G!&!7($/%&$&F"!0F*=(<06&=!%($=(&+!<"&E/%$%=/$)&B1A/0!"&!"&J"/A$(*&,*$)(-&B1A/0!"&!"&A/0/(&(-*& !"#$%&

'($%)*+&Q*70/(*&$(&QQQ;.!"#$%0($%)*+;=!.;&J)*$0*&"*$1&/(&=$"*2<))+&7*2!"*&/%A*0(/%#;

 !"#!$%&'(%!'"#!")"(*!%+"(),-%'"./!0"#&"!*'"#!&/,%0"*,"1/),)!'%%0"2+"'3%"4%0%,)5"6%7*&#'"8!&/,)!9%":*,7*,)'#*!"*,")!+"*'3%,"1*$%,!(%!'")1%!9+;" 5'3*/13"'3%"4/!0"&%%-&"'*"7,%&%,$%"'3%"$)5/%"*."

+*/,"#!$%&'(%!'")'"<=;>>"7%,"&3),%?"#'"#&"7*&&#25%"'*"5*&%"(*!%+"2+"#!$%&'#!1"#!"'3%"./!0;

 !"#+3'"#%*#-(+(.&#*(/1$#./1#G S$#1,$6($$"1#,/#+!,$#')"$"/+.+,%/#(+,&,l"$#/%/+).1,+,%/.&#%)#6%-'&"<#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#./1Q%)#1"),7.+,7"$8#G<.-'&"$#%*#+!"$"#+3'"$#%*#*(/1$#,/6&(1"#+!%$"#+!.+#(+,&,l"#

%/"#%)#-%)"#%*#+!"#4"&%2#/%+"1#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#%)#6.+";%),"$#%)#2!,6!#$""D#"<'%$()"#+%#+!"#*%&&%2,/;#-.)D"+$V#A\B#6%--%1,+,"$#A" 8;80#.;),6(&+().&0#"/");3#./1#-"+.&$B0#6())"/630#')"6,%($#-"+.&$H#

A_B#-./.;"1#*(+()"$H#AjB#&"7").;"10#,/7")$"#%)#,/7")$"#&"7").;"1H#A]B#4".)#-.)D"+0#!"1;,/;0#&%/;R$!%)+#"J(,+30#-.)D"+#/"(+).&H#AfB#)".&#"$+.+"H#AgB#7%&.+,&,+3#A$""D,/;#"<'%$()"#+%#+!"#FCYG#O9m#9/1"<B8#

9/7"$+%)$#$!%(&1#D""'#,/#-,/1#+!.+#2!,&"#-(+(.&#*(/1$#./1#G S$#-.30#.+#+,-"$0#(+,&,l"#/%/+).1,+,%/.&#,/7"$+-"/+#%'+,%/$#./1#$+).+";,"$0#+!"3#$!%(&1#/%+#4"#"J(.+"1#2,+!#(/)";,$+")"1#'),7.+"&3#%5")"1#

.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$8#C"6.($"#%*#)";(&.+%)3#&,-,+.+,%/$0#-(+(.&#*(/1$#./1#G S$#+!.+#$""D#.&+")/.+,7"R&,D"#,/7"$+-"/+#"<'%$()"#-($+#(+,&,l"#.#-%)"#&,-,+"1#,/7"$+-"/+#(/,7")$"8#:$#.#)"$(&+0#

,/7"$+-"/+#)"+()/$#./1#'%)+*%&,%#6!.).6+"),$+,6$#%*#.&+")/.+,7"#-(+(.&#*(/1$#./1#G S$#-.3#7.)3#*)%-#+).1,+,%/.&#!"1;"#*(/1$#'()$(,/;#$,-,&.)#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$8#=%)"%7")0#+).1,+,%/.&#!"1;"#*(/1$#

!.7"#&,-,+"1#&,J(,1,+3#2,+!#&%/;#M&%6DR('P#'"),%1$#.&&%2,/;#+!"-#+%#'()$("#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#2,+!%(+#!.7,/;#+%#*.6+%)#,/#+!"#/""1#+%#-""+#6&,"/+#)"1"-'+,%/$#./1#G S$#+).1"#%/#./#"<6!./;" 8#Y/#+!"#

%+!")#!./10#-(+(.&#*(/1$#+3',6.&&3#-($+#-""+#1.,&3#6&,"/+#)"1"-'+,%/$8# !,$#1,5"),/;#&,J(,1,+3#')%K&"#6./#!.7"#.#-.+"),.&#,-'.6+#%/#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#)"+()/$#;"/").+"1#43#.#-(+(.&#*(/1#%)#G S#'()$(,/;#

./#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+,/;#$+).+";3#6%-'.)"1#2,+!#.#+).1,+,%/.&#!"1;"#*(/1#'()$(,/;#+!"#$.-"#$+).+";38

W%/+).1,+,%/.&#,/7"$+-"/+#%'+,%/$#./1#$+).+";,"$#.)"#%*+"/#"-'&%3"1#43#.#'%)+*%&,%#-./.;")#+%#*()+!")#.#*(/1I$#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"#./1#+%#!"&'#%5$"+#-.)D"+#),$D$ 8#a%2"7")0#+!"$"#*".+()"$#-.3#4"#

6%-'&"<0#-.D,/;#,+#-%)"#1,b6(&+#+%#(/1")$+./1#+!"#*(/1I$#"$$"/+,.&#6!.).6+"),$+,6$#./1#),$D$0#./1#!%2#,+#2,&&#'")*%)-#,/#1,5")"/+#-.)D"+#"/7,)%/-"/+$#./1#%7")#7.),%($#'"),%1$#%*#+,-"8# !"3#-.3#.&$%#

"<'%$"#+!"#*(/1#+%#,/6)".$"1#7%&.+,&,+3#./1#(/./+,6,'.+"1#),$D$#'.)+,6(&.)&3#2!"/#($"1#,/#6%-'&"<#6%-4,/.+,%/$#./1Q%)#.66%-'./,"1#43#+!"#($"#%*#4%))%2,/;#%)#M&"7").;"8P

 !"#=%);./#>+./&"3#=%4,&"#:''#,$#6())"/+&3#.7.,&.4&"#*%)#,L!%/"n#./1#,L.1n#*)%-#+!"#:''#>+%)"n#./1#:/1)%,1o#%/#U%%;&"#L&.3o8#>+./1.)1#-"$$.;,/;#./1#1.+.#).+"$#*)%-#3%()#')%7,1")#-.3#.''&38#

>(4@"6+#+%#1"7,6"#6%//"6+,7,+38

:''&"n0#+!"#:''&"#&%;%0#,L!%/"n0#,L.1n0#./1#,L.1#:,)n#.)"#+).1"-.)D$#%*#:''&"#9/680#)";,$+")"1#,/#+!"#c>#./1#%+!")#6%(/+),"$8#:''&"#L.3o#./1#,L.1#-,/,o#.)"#+).1"-.)D$#%*#:''&"#9/68#:''#>+%)"#,$#.#

$")7,6"#-.)D#%*#:''&"#9/68#:/1)%,1#./1#U%%;&"#L&.3#.)"#+).1"-.)D$#%*#U%%;&"#9/68

 !"#=%);./#>+./&"3#N,;,+.&#O.(&+#ApN,;,+.&#O.(&+pB#,$#.66"$$,4&"#+%#6&,"/+$#2,+!#1"1,6.+"1#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)$8#N%6(-"/+$#$!.)"1#7,.#+!"#N,;,+.&#O.(&+#$!%(&1#4"#&,-,+"1#+%#+!%$"#)"&"7./+#+%#3%()#=%);./#

>+./&"3#.66%(/+#)"&.+,%/$!,'8#c'&%.1,/;#.#1%6(-"/+#+%#+!"#N,;,+.&#O.(&+#1%"$#/%+#%4&,;.+"#($#+%#)"7,"2#%)#+.D"#./3#.6+,%/#%/#,+0#./1#2"#2,&&#/%+#4"#&,.4&"#*%)#./3#*.,&()"#+%#.6+#('%/#+!"#6%/+"/+$#%*#$(6!#

1%6(-"/+8#L&".$"#6%/+.6+#3%()#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)#%)#C)./6!#=./.;"-"/+#+%#1,$6($$#+!"#.'')%'),.+"#')%6"$$#*%)#')%7,1,/;#+!"#1%6(-"/+#+%#($#*%)#)"7,"28#9*#3%(#-.,/+.,/#.# )($+#%)#"/+,+3#.66%(/+#2,+!#

($0#%/&3#%()#6")+,K6.+,%/#*%)-#2,&&#;%7")/#%()#%4&,;.+,%/$#*%)#$(6!#.66%(/+8#L&".$"#)"*")#+%#+!"#=%);./#>+./&"3#N,;,+.&#O.(&+#+")-$#./1#6%/1,+,%/$#*%)#-%)"#,/*%)-.+,%/8

9/*%)-.+,%/#)"&.+"1#+%#3%()#"<+")/.&#.66%(/+$#,$#')%7,1"1#*%)#,/*%)-.+,%/.&#'()'%$"$#%/&38#9+#,$#')%7,1"1#43#+!,)1#'.)+,"$0#,/6&(1,/;#+!"#K/./6,.&#,/$+,+(+,%/$#2!")"#3%()#"<+")/.&#.66%(/+$#.)"#!"&18#

=%);./#>+./&"3#1%"$#/%+#7"),*3#+!.+#+!"#,/*%)-.+,%/#,$#.66().+"#./1#-.D"$#/%#)"')"$"/+.+,%/#%)#2.))./+3#.$#+%#,+$#.66().630#+,-"&,/"$$0#%)#6%-'&"+"/"$$8#:11,+,%/.&#,/*%)-.+,%/#.4%(+#+!"#*".+()"$#./1#

$")7,6"$#%5")"1#+!)%(;!# %+.&#?".&+!#O,"2#.)"#.7.,&.4&"#%/#+!"# %+.&#?".&+!#O,"2#$,+"#%/#=%);./#>+./&"3#Y/&,/"#./1#.&$%#,/#+!"# %+.&#?".&+!#O,"2# ")-$#./1#F%/1,+,%/$#%*#c$" 8

=%4,&"#6!"6D#1"'%$,+$#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#6")+.,/#+")-$#./1#6%/1,+,%/$8#F!"6D$#-($+#4"#1).2/#%/#.#c8>8#C./D8

 !"#$%"&'("



>"/1#=%/"3#2,+!#q"&&"n#,$#.7.,&.4&"#%/#+!"#=%);./#>+./&"3#=%4,&"#:''#*%)#,L!%/"#./1#:/1)%,1#./1#%/#=%);./#>+./&"3#Y/&,/"8#G/)%&&-"/+#,$#)"J(,)"1#./1#1%&&.)#./1#*)"J("/63#&,-,+$#-.3#.''&38#

N%-"$+,6#*(/1#+)./$*")$#-($+#4"#-.1"#*)%-#./#"&,;,4&"#.66%(/+#.+#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF#A=%);./#>+./&"3B#+%#.#c>R4.$"1#.66%(/+#.+#./%+!")#K/./6,.&#,/$+,+(+,%/8#=%);./#>+./&"3#

-.,/+.,/$#.))./;"-"/+$#2,+!#rL#=%);./#F!.$"#C./D0#W8:8#./1#c=C#C./D0#W8:8#.$#W:Fa:R'.)+,6,'.+,/;#1"'%$,+%)3#K/./6,.&#,/$+,+(+,%/$#*%)#+!"#')%6"$$,/;#%*#+)./$*")$#%/#q"&&"n8#N.+.#6%//"6+,%/#

)"J(,)"10#./1#-"$$.;"#./1#1.+.#).+"$#-.3#.''&30#,/6&(1,/;#+!%$"#*)%-#3%()#6%--(/,6.+,%/$#$")7,6"#')%7,1")8#=($+#!.7"#./#"&,;,4&"#.66%(/+#,/#+!"#c8>8#+%#($"#q"&&"n8# )./$.6+,%/$#+3',6.&&3#%66()#,/#

-,/(+"$#2!"/#+!"#)"6,',"/+I$#"-.,&#.11)"$$#%)#c8>8#-%4,&"#/(-4")#,$#.&)".13#"/)%&&"1#2,+!#q"&&"8#>""#+!"#=%);./#>+./&"3#>"/1#=%/"3#2,+!#q"&&"n#+")-$#*%)#1"+.,&$8

q"&&"#./1#+!"#q"&&"#)"&.+"1#-.)D$#.)"#2!%&&3#%2/"1#43#G.)&3#?.)/,/;#>")7,6"$0#EEF#./1#.)"#($"1#!")",/#(/1")#&,6"/$"8#=%);./#>+./&"3#,$#/%+#.b&,.+"1#2,+!#q"&&"n8

G&"6+)%/,6#'.3-"/+$#.)),7"#+%#+!"#'.3""#2,+!,/#\R_#4($,/"$$#1.3$0#6!"6D#'.3-"/+$#.)),7"#+%#+!"#'.3""#2,+!,/#f#4($,/"$$#1.3$8#>.-"R1.3#./1#%7")/,;!+#'.3-"/+$#.)"#.7.,&.4&"#*%)#./#.11,+,%/.&#*""#

2,+!,/#+!"#.7.,&.4&"#'.3-"/+#+,-"*).-"$8

VUP&B''UG&54B''&5HR'@>UWBG@HR'&BR>&HGXUW&W@'V'

9/7"$+,/;#,/#+!"#-.)D"+$#"/+.,&$#+!"#),$D#%*#-.)D"+#7%&.+,&,+38# !"#7.&("#%*#.&&#+3'"$#%*#,/7"$+-"/+$0#,/6&(1,/;#$+%6D$0#-(+(.&#*(/1$0#"<6!./;"R+).1"1#*(/1$#AMG S$PB0#6&%$"1R"/1#*(/1$0#./1#(/,+#

,/7"$+-"/+#+)($+$0#-.3#,/6)".$"#%)#1"6)".$"#%7")#7.)3,/;#+,-"#'"),%1$8# %#+!"#"<+"/+#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+$#1"',6+"1#!")",/#)"')"$"/+#/%(*"%$(/!%$)&0*=<"/(/*00#3%(#$!%(&1#4"#.2.)"#+!.+#+!")"#-.3#4"#

.11,+,%/.&#),$D$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#,/+")/.+,%/.&#,/7"$+,/;0#,/6&(1,/;#*%)",;/#"6%/%-,60#'%&,+,6.&0#-%/"+.)3#./1Q%)#&";.&#*.6+%)$0#6!./;,/;#6())"/63#"<6!./;"#).+"$0#*%)",;/#+.<"$0#./1#1,5")"/6"$#,/#

K/./6,.&#./1#.66%(/+,/;#$+./1.)1$8# !"$"#),$D$#-.3#4"#-.;/,K"1#,/#*.*"#/%#&.$"8*(0&$%1&2"!%(/*"&.$"8*(08#'.$))9&$%1&./19=$F/($)/Y$(/!%&=!.F$%/*0&-.3#&.6D#+!"#K/./6,.&#)"$%()6"$0#')%1(6+#

1,7")$,K6.+,%/#./1#6%-'"+,+,7"#$+)"/;+!$#%*#&.);")#6%-'./,"$8#9/#.11,+,%/0#+!"#$"6(),+,"$#%*#$-.&&R#./1#-,1R6.',+.&,l.+,%/#6%-'./,"$#-.3#/%+#+).1"#.$#)".1,&3#.$0#./1#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#!,;!")#7%&.+,&,+3#+!./0#

+!%$"#%*#&.);")0#-%)"#"$+.4&,$!"1#6%-'./,"$8# !"#7.&("#%*#ZT*1&/%=!.*&0*=<"/(/*0&2,&&#[(6+(.+"#./10#('%/#.#$.&"0#-.3#4"#2%)+!#-%)"#%)#&"$$#+!./#+!",)#%),;,/.&#6%$+#%)#-.+(),+3#7.&("8#C%/1$#.)"#$(4@"6+#

+%#,/+")"$+#).+"#),$D0#6.&&#),$D0#)",/7"$+-"/+#),$D0#&,J(,1,+3#),$D0#./1#6)"1,+#),$D#%*#+!"#,$$(")8#X/#-&+/*)1&7!%10&.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#.11,+,%/.&#),$D$#$(6!#.$#,/6)".$"1#),$D#%*#1"*.(&+#./1#;)".+")#7%&.+,&,+3#4"6.($"#

%*#+!"#&%2")#6)"1,+#J(.&,+3#%*#+!"#,$$("$8#9/#+!"#6.$"#%*#.<%/=/F$)&7!%100#,/6%-"#,$#;"/").&&3#"<"-'+#*)%-#*"1").&#,/6%-"#+.<"$8#>%-"#,/6%-"#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#$+.+"#./1#&%6.&#+.<"$#./1#+%#+!"#*"1").&#

.&+")/.+,7"#-,/,-(-#+.<8#F.',+.&#;.,/$0#,*#./30#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#+.<8#G"*$0<"+&@%N$(/!%&J"!(*=(/!%&'*=<"/(/*0[&CG@J'D&6%('%/#'.3-"/+$#./1#(/1")&3,/;#'),/6,'.&#.)"#.(+%-.+,6.&&3#,/6)".$"1#+%#

6%-'"/$.+"#*%)#,/[.+,%/#43#+).6D,/;#+!"#6%/$(-")#'),6"#,/1"<#AFL9B8#?!,&"#+!"#)".&#).+"#%*#)"+()/#,$#;(.)./+""10# 9L>#+"/1#+%#%5")#.#&%2#)"+()/8#C"6.($"#+!"#)"+()/#%*# 9L>#,$#&,/D"1#+%#,/[.+,%/0# 9L>#

-.3#$,;/,K6./+&3#(/1")'")*%)-#7")$($#6%/7"/+,%/.&#c8>8# )".$(),"$#,/#+,-"$#%*#&%2#,/[.+,%/8# !")"#,$#/%#;(.)./+""#+!.+#,/7"$+%)$#2,&&#)"6",7"#'.)#,*# 9L>#.)"#$%&1#'),%)#+%#-.+(),+38# !"#)"+()/$#%/#.#

'%)+*%&,%#6%/$,$+,/;#'),-.),&3#%*#*%A/"!%.*%($)6&0!=/$)6&$%1&#!A*"%$%=*9$Q$"*&/%A*0(.*%(0&C\U'?]D&-.3#4"#&%2")#%)#!,;!")#+!./#.#'%)+*%&,%#+!.+#,$#-%)"#1,7")$,K"1#%)#2!")"#1"6,$,%/$#.)"#4.$"1#

$%&"&3#%/#,/7"$+-"/+#6%/$,1").+,%/$8#C"6.($"#G>U#6),+"),.#"<6&(1"#$%-"#,/7"$+-"/+$0#,/7"$+%)$#-.3#/%+#4"#.4&"#+%#+.D"#.17./+.;"#%*#+!"#$.-"#%''%)+(/,+,"$#%)#-.)D"+#+)"/1$#.$#,/7"$+%)$#+!.+#1%#/%+#

($"#$(6!#6),+"),.8# !"#6%-'./,"$#,1"/+,K"1#./1#,/7"$+-"/+#"<.-'&"$#.)"#*%)#,&&($+).+,7"#'()'%$"$#%/&3#./1#$!%(&1#/%+#4"#1""-"1#.#)"6%--"/1.+,%/#+%#'()6!.$" 0#!%&1#%)#$"&&#./3#$"6(),+,"$#%)#

,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$8# !"3#.)"#,/+"/1"1#+%#1"-%/$+).+"#+!"#.'')%.6!"$#+.D"/#43#-./.;")$#2!%#*%6($#%/#G>U#6),+"),.#,/#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";38# !")"#6./#4"#/%#;(.)./+""#+!.+#.#6&,"/+s$#.66%(/+#

2,&&#4"#-./.;"1#.$#1"$6),4"1#!")",/8#HF(/!%0&./1#-.);,/#+).1,/;#,/7%&7"#$(4$+./+,.&#),$D#./1#.)"#/%+#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8#C"$,1"$#+!"#;"/").&#,/7"$+-"/+#),$D#%*#!%&1,/;#$"6(),+,"$#+!.+#-.3#

1"6&,/"#,/#7.&("#./1#+!"#'%$$,4&"#&%$$#%*#'),/6,'.&#,/7"$+"10#=)!0*19*%1&2<%10&-.3#!.7"#.11,+,%/.&#),$D$#)"&.+"1#+%#1"6&,/,/;#-.)D"+#'),6"$#)"&.+,7"#+%#/"+#.$$"+#7.&("$#AW:O$B0#.6+,7"#-./.;")#

(/1")'")*%)-./6"#./1#'%+"/+,.&#&"7").;"8#F&%$"1R"/1#*(/1$0#(/&,D"#%'"/R"/1#*(/1$0#.)"#/%+#6%/+,/(%($&3#%5")"18# !")"#,$#.#%/"R+,-"#'(4&,6#%5"),/;#./1#%/6"#,$$("10#$!.)"$#%*#6&%$"1R"/1#*(/1$#.)"#

$%&1#,/#+!"#%'"/#-.)D"+#+!)%(;!#.#$+%6D#"<6!./;"8#>!.)"$#%*#6&%$"1R"/1#*(/1$#*)"J("/+&3#+).1"#.+#.#1,$6%(/+#*)%-#+!",)#W:O#2!,6!#-.3#,/6)".$"#,/7"$+%)$s#),$D#%*#&%$$8# !"#),$D#%*#&%$$#1("#+%#+!,$#

1,$6%(/+#-.3#4"#;)".+")#*%)#,/7"$+%)$#"<'"6+,/;#+%#$"&&#+!",)#$!.)"$#,/#.#)"&.+,7"&3#$!%)+#'"),%1#.*+")#6%-'&"+,%/#%*#+!"#'(4&,6#%5"),/; 8# !,$#6!.).6+"),$+,6#,$#.#),$D#$"'.).+"#./1#1,$+,/6+#*)%-#+!"#),$D#+!.+#.#

6&%$"1R"/1#*(/1s$#/"+#.$$"+#7.&("#-.3#1"6)".$"#.$#.#)"$(&+#%*#,/7"$+-"/+#.6+,7,+,"$8#W:O#,$#+%+.&#.$$"+$#&"$$#+%+.&#&,.4,&,+,"$#1,7,1"1#43#+!"#/(-4")#%*#$!.)"$#%(+$+./1,/;8#:+#+!"#+,-"#./#,/7"$+%)#

'()6!.$"$#$!.)"$#%*#.#6&%$"1R"/1#*(/10#$!.)"$#-.3#!.7"#.#-.)D"+#'),6"#+!.+#,$#.4%7"#%)#4"&%2#W:O8#L%)+*%&,%$#+!.+#,/7"$+#.#&.);"#'")6"/+.;"#%*#.$$"+$#,/#%/&3#%/"#,/1($+)3#0*=(!"&A%)#,/#%/&3#.#*"2#

$"6+%)$B#.)"#-%)"#7(&/").4&"#+%#'),6"#[(6+(.+,%/#+!./#+!%$"#+!.+#1,7")$,*3#.-%/;#.#4)%.1#)./;"#%*#$"6+%)$8

B)(*"%$(/A*&/%A*0(.*%(0&%*+"/#.)"#$'"6(&.+,7"#./1#,/6&(1"#.#!,;!#1";)""#%*#),$D8#9/7"$+%)$#6%(&1#&%$"#.&&#%)#.#$(4$+./+,.&#.-%(/+#%*#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+8#:&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$#.)"#.'')%'),.+"#%/&3#*%)#

"&,;,4&"0#&%/;R+")-#,/7"$+%)$#2!%#.)"#2,&&,/;#+%#*%);%#&,J(,1,+3#./1#'(+#6.',+.&#.+#),$D#*%)#./#,/1"K/,+"#'"),%1#%*#+,-"8# !"3#-.3#4"#!,;!&3#,&&,J(,1#./1#6./#"/;.;"#,/#&"7").;"#./1#%+!")#$'"6(&.+,7"#

').6+,6"$#+!.+#-.3#,/6)".$"#+!"#7%&.+,&,+3#./1#),$D#%*#&%$$8#:&+")/.+,7"#9/7"$+-"/+$#+3',6.&&3#!.7"#!,;!")#*""$#+!./#+).1,+,%/.&#,/7"$+-"/+$8#9/7"$+%)$#$!%(&1#6.)"*(&&3#)"7,"2#./1#6%/$,1")#'%+"/+,.&#),$D$#

4"*%)"#,/7"$+,/;8#F")+.,/#%*#+!"$"#),$D$#-.3#,/6&(1"#4(+#.)"#/%+#&,-,+"1#+%V#E%$$#%*#.&&#%)#.#$(4$+./+,.&#'%)+,%/#%*#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#1("#+%#&"7").;,/;0#$!%)+R$"&&,/;0#%)#%+!")#$'"6(&.+,7"#').6+,6"$H#E.6D#%*#

&,J(,1,+3#,/#+!.+#+!")"#-.3#4"#/%#$"6%/1.)3#-.)D"+#*%)#.#*(/1H#O%&.+,&,+3#%*#)"+()/$H#`"$+),6+,%/$#%/#+)./$*")),/;#,/+")"$+$#,/#.#*(/1H#L%+"/+,.&#&.6D#%*#1,7")$,K6.+,%/#./1#)"$(&+,/;#!,;!")#),$D#1("#+%#

6%/6"/+).+,%/#%*#+).1,/;#.(+!%),+3#2!"/#.#$,/;&"#.17,$%)#,$#(+,&,l"1H#:4$"/6"#%*#,/*%)-.+,%/#)";.)1,/;#7.&(.+,%/$#./1#'),6,/;H#F%-'&"<#+.<#$+)(6+()"$#./1#1"&.3$#,/#+.<#)"'%)+,/;H#E"$$#)";(&.+,%/#./1#

!,;!")#*""$#+!./#-(+(.&#*(/1$H#`,$D$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#+!"#%'").+,%/$0#'")$%//"&0#./1#')%6"$$"$#%*#+!"#-./.;")H#./1#`,$D$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#634")$"6(),+38#:$#.#1,7")$,K"1#;&%4.&#K/./6,.&#$")7,6"$#K)-0#

 !"#$%"&'("



=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#"/;.;"$#,/#.#4)%.1#$'"6+)(-#%*#.6+,7,+,"$#,/6&(1,/;#K/./6,.&#.17,$%)3#$")7,6"$0#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;"-"/+#.6+,7,+,"$0#$'%/$%),/;#./1#-./.;,/;#'),7.+"#,/7"$+-"/+#

*(/1$0#"/;.;,/;#,/#4)%D")R1".&")#+)./$.6+,%/$#./1#'),/6,'.&#$"6(),+,"$0#6%--%1,+,"$#./1#*%)",;/#"<6!./;"#+)./$.6+,%/$0#)"$".)6!#'(4&,6.+,%/0#./1#%+!")#.6+,7,+,"$8#9/#+!"#%)1,/.)3#6%()$"#%*#,+$#4($,/"$$0#

=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#+!")"*%)"#"/;.;"$#,/#.6+,7,+,"$#2!")"#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+I$#,/+")"$+$#-.3#6%/[,6+#2,+!#+!"#,/+")"$+$#%*#,+$#6&,"/+$# 0#,/6&(1,/;#+!"#'),7.+"#

,/7"$+-"/+#*(/1$#,+#-./.;"$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#6./#;,7"#/%#.$$()./6"#+!.+#6%/[,6+$#%*#,/+")"$+#2,&&#4"#)"$%&7"1#,/#*.7%)#%*#,+$#6&,"/+$#%)#./3#$(6!#*(/18#:&&#"<')"$$,%/$#%*#%',/,%/#.)"#

$(4@"6+#+%#6!./;"#2,+!%(+#/%+,6"#./1#.)"#/%+#,/+"/1"1#+%#4"#.#*%)"6.$+#%*#*(+()"#"7"/+$#%)#)"$(&+$8#S()+!")0#%',/,%/$#"<')"$$"1#!")",/#-.3#1,5")#*)%-#+!"#%',/,%/$#"<')"$$"1#43#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#

=./.;"-"/+#./1Q%)#%+!")#4($,/"$$"$Q.b&,.+"$#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+8# !,$#,$#/%+#.#p)"$".)6!#)"'%)+p#.$#1"K/"1#43#S9W`:#`(&"#__]\#%)#.#p1"4+#)"$".)6!#)"'%)+p#.$#1"K/"1#43#S9W`:#

`(&"#__]_#./1#2.$#/%+#')"'.)"1#43#+!"#`"$".)6!#N"'.)+-"/+$#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF#%)#=%);./#>+./&"3#T#F%8#EEF#%)#,+$#.b&,.+"$8#F")+.,/#,/*%)-.+,%/#6%/+.,/"1#!")",/#-.3#6%/$+,+(+"#

*%)2.)1R&%%D,/;#$+.+"-"/+$8#N("#+%#7.),%($#),$D$#./1#(/6")+.,/+,"$0#.6+(.&#"7"/+$0#)"$(&+$#%)#+!"#'")*%)-./6"#%*#.#*(/1#-.3#1,5")#-.+"),.&&3#*)%-#+!%$"#)"["6+"1#%)#6%/+"-'&.+"1#,/#$(6!#

*%)2.)1R&%%D,/;#$+.+"-"/+$8#F&,"/+$#$!%(&1#6.)"*(&&3#6%/$,1")#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#%4@"6+,7"$0#),$D$0#6!.);"$0#./1#"<'"/$"$#%*#.#*(/1#4"*%)"#,/7"$+,/;8#?!,&"#+!"#aS`9#,/1,6"$#.)"#*)"J("/+&3#($"10#+!"3#!.7"#

&,-,+.+,%/$#A$%-"#%*#2!,6!#.)"#+3',6.&#%*#%+!")#2,1"&3#($"1#,/1,6"$B8# !"$"#&,-,+.+,%/$#,/6&(1"#$()7,7%)$!,'#4,.$#A+!"#)"+()/$#%*#+!"#,/1,6"$#-.3#/%+#4"#)"')"$"/+.+,7"#%*#.&&#+!"#!"1;"#*(/1$#,/#+!"#(/,7")$"#

4"6.($"#%*#+!"#+"/1"/63#%*#&%2")#'")*%)-,/;#*(/1$#+%#&".7"#+!"#,/1"<BH#!"+")%;"/",+3#A/%+#.&&#!"1;"#*(/1$#.)"#.&,D"#%)#6%-'.).4&"#+%#%/"#./%+!")0#./1#+!"#,/1"<#-.3#/%+#.66().+"&3#)"["6+#+!"#

'")*%)-./6"#%*#.#1"$6),4"1#$+3&"BH#./1#&,-,+"1#1.+.#A-./3#!"1;"#*(/1$#1%#/%+#)"'%)+#+%#,/1,6"$0#./1#+!"#,/1"<#-.3#%-,+#*(/1$0#+!"#,/6&($,%/#%*#2!,6!#-,;!+#$,;/,K6./+&3#.5"6+#+!"#'")*%)-./6"#$!%2/8#

 !"#aS`9#,/1,6"$#.)"#4.$"1#%/#,/*%)-.+,%/#$"&*R)"'%)+"1#43#!"1;"#*(/1#-./.;")$#+!.+#1"6,1"#%/#+!",)#%2/0#.+#./3#+,-"0#2!"+!")#%)#/%+#+!"3#2./+#+%#')%7,1"0#%)#6%/+,/("#+%#')%7,1"0#,/*%)-.+,%/#+%#aS`#

:$$"+#=./.;"-"/+0#E8E8F8#`"$(&+$#*%)#*(/1$#+!.+#;%#%(+#%*#4($,/"$$#.)"#,/6&(1"1#,/#+!"#,/1"<#(/+,&#+!"#1.+"#+!.+#+!"3#6".$"#%'").+,%/$8# !")"*%)"0#+!"$"#,/1,6"$#-.3#/%+#4"#6%-'&"+"#%)#.66().+"#

)"')"$"/+.+,%/$#%*#+!"#!"1;"#*(/1#(/,7")$"0#./1#-.3#4"#4,.$"1#,/#$"7").&#2.3$8#F%-'%$,+"#,/1"<#)"$(&+$#.)"#$!%2/#*%)#,&&($+).+,7"#'()'%$"$#./1#1%#/%+#)"')"$"/+#+!"#'")*%)-./6"#%*#.#$'"6,K6#

,/7"$+-"/+8#9/1,7,1(.&#*(/1$#!.7"#$'"6,K6#+.<#),$D$#)"&.+"1#+%#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+#')%;).-$#+!.+#2,&&#7.)3#*)%-#*(/1#+%#*(/18#F&,"/+$#$!%(&1#6%/$(&+#+!",)#%2/#+.<#./1#&";.&#.17,$%)$#.$#=%);./#>+./&"3#

?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#1%"$#/%+#')%7,1"#+.<#%)#&";.&#.17,6"8#9/+")"$+$#,/#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#.)"#%5")"1#'()$(./+#+%#+!"#+")-$#%*#+!"#.''&,6.4&"#%5"),/;#-"-%)./1(-#0#.)"#1,$+),4(+"1#43#

=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#./1#6")+.,/#%*#,+$#.b&,.+"$0#./1#A\B#.)"#/%+#SN9FR,/$()"10#A_B#.)"#/%+#1"'%$,+$#%)#%+!")#%4&,;.+,%/$#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#%)#./3#%*#,+$#.b&,.+"$0#AjB#

.)"#/%+#;(.)./+""1#43#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#./1#,+$#.b&,.+"$0#./1#A]B#,/7%&7"#,/7"$+-"/+#),$D$0#,/6&(1,/;#'%$$,4&"#&%$$#%*#'),/6,'.&8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,$#.#)";,$+")"1#

4)%D")R1".&")0#/%+#.#4./D8# !,$#-.+"),.&#,$#/%+#+%#4"#)"')%1(6"1#%)#1,$+),4(+"1#+%#./3#%+!")#'")$%/$#A%+!")#+!./#')%*"$$,%/.&#.17,$%)$#%*#+!"#,/7"$+%)$#%)#')%$'"6+,7"#,/7"$+%)$# 0#.$#.''&,6.4&"0#)"6",7,/;#

+!,$#-.+"),.&B#./1#,$#,/+"/1"1#$%&"&3#*%)#+!"#($"#%*#+!"#'")$%/$#+%#2!%-#,+#!.$#4""/#1"&,7")"18# !,$#-.+"),.&#,$#/%+#*%)#1,$+),4(+,%/#+%#+!"#;"/").&#'(4&,68#L.$+#'")*%)-./6"#,$#/%#;(.)./+""#%*#*(+()"#

)"$(&+$8#:6+(.&#)"$(&+$#-.3#7.)38#>9LF#,/$()./6"#1%"$#/%+#.''&3#+%#')"6,%($#-"+.&$0#%+!")#6%--%1,+,"$0#%)#+).1,+,%/.&#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$8#9/#F%/$(&+,/;#U)%('I$#.17,$%)3#')%;).-$0#.&+")/.+,7"#

,/7"$+-"/+$#.)"#&,-,+"1#+%#c>R)";,$+")"1#-(+(.&#*(/1$0#$"'.).+"#.66%(/+#$+).+";,"$#./1#"<6!./;"R+).1"1#*(/1$#AG S$B#+!.+#$""D#+%#'()$("#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#%)#)"+()/$#(+,&,l,/;#'(4&,6&3#

+).1"1#$"6(),+,"$8#9/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$#,/#+!,$#6.+";%)3#-.3#"-'&%3#7.),%($#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";,"$#./1#+"6!/,J("$#*%)#4%+!#!"1;,/;#./1#-%)"#$'"6(&.+,7"#'()'%$"$#$(6!#.$#$!%)+# R$"&&,/;0#&"7").;"0#

1"),7.+,7"$#./1#%'+,%/$0#2!,6!#6./#,/6)".$"#7%&.+,&,+3#./1#+!"#),$D#%*#,/7"$+-"/+#&%$$8#:&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$#.)"#/%+#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8#:$#.#1,7")$,K"1#;&%4.&#K/./6,.&#$")7,6"$#K)-0#=%);./#

>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#"/;.;"$#,/#.#4)%.1#$'"6+)(-#%*#.6+,7,+,"$#,/6&(1,/;#K/./6,.&#.17,$%)3#$")7,6"$0#,/7"$+-"/+#-./.;"-"/+#.6+,7,+,"$0#$'%/$%),/;#./1#-./.;,/;#'),7.+"#,/7"$+-"/+#*(/1$0#

"/;.;,/;#,/#4)%D")R1".&")#+)./$.6+,%/$#./1#'),/6,'.&#$"6(),+,"$0#6%--%1,+,"$#./1#*%)",;/#"<6!./;"#+)./$.6+,%/$0#)"$".)6!#'(4&,6.+,%/0#./1#%+!")#.6+,7,+,"$8#9/#+!"#%)1,/.)3#6%()$"#%*#,+$#4($,/"$$0#=%);./#

>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#+!")"*%)"#"/;.;"$#,/#.6+,7,+,"$#2!")"#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+I$#,/+")"$+$#-.3#6%/[,6+#2,+!#+!"#,/+")"$+$#%*#,+$#6&,"/+$# 0#,/6&(1,/;#+!"#'),7.+"#,/7"$+-"/+#*(/1$#

,+#-./.;"$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#6./#;,7"#/%#.$$()./6"#+!.+#6%/[,6+$#%*#,/+")"$+#2,&&#4"#)"$%&7"1#,/#*.7%)#%*#,+$#6&,"/+$#%)#./3#$(6!#*(/18#:&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$#,/7%&7"#6%-'&"<#+.<#

$+)(6+()"$0#+.<#,/"b6,"/+#,/7"$+,/;0#./1#1"&.3$#,/#1,$+),4(+,/;#,-'%)+./+#+.<#,/*%)-.+,%/8#9/1,7,1(.&#*(/1$#!.7"#$'"6,K6#),$D$#)"&.+"1#+%#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+#')%;).-$#+!.+#2,&&#7.)3#*)%-#*(/1#+%#*(/18#

F&,"/+$#$!%(&1#6%/$(&+#+!",)#%2/#+.<#./1#&";.&#.17,$%)$#.$#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#1%"$#/%+#')%7,1"#+.<#%)#&";.&#.17,6"8

:#-.@%),+3#%*#:&+")/.+,7"#9/7"$+-"/+#-./.;")$#)"7,"2"1#./1#$"&"6+"1#43#U9=:#'.3#%)#6.($"#+%#4"#'.,1#./#%/;%,/;#*""#*%)#1,$+),4(+,%/#*)%-#+!",)#-./.;"-"/+#*""$#+%#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#

=./.;"-"/+#,/#6%//"6+,%/#2,+!#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#6&,"/+$#+!.+#'()6!.$"#./#,/+")"$+#,/#./#:&+")/.+,7"#9/7"$+-"/+#./1#,/#$%-"#,/$+./6"$#'.3#+!"$"#*""$#%/#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+$#!"&1#43#

.17,$%)3#6&,"/+$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#)"4.+"$#$(6!#*""$#+!.+#.)"#)"6",7"1#./1#.++),4(+.4&"#+%#./#,/7"$+-"/+#!"&1#43#./#.17,$%)3#6&,"/+#./1#)"+.,/$#+!"#*""$#'.,1#,/#6%//"6+,%/#2,+!#

,/7"$+-"/+$#!"&1#43#4)%D").;"#6&,"/+$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#!.$#.#6%/[,6+#%*#,/+")"$+#,/#%5"),/;#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$#4"6.($"#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#%)#%()#.b&,.+"$0#

,/#-%$+#,/$+./6"$0#".)/#-%)"#-%/"3#,/#3%()#.66%(/+#*)%-#3%()#,/7"$+-"/+$#,/#.&+")/.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$#+!./#*)%-#%+!")#,/7"$+-"/+#%'+,%/$8

9+#$!%(&1#4"#/%+"1#+!.+#+!"#-.@%),+3#%*#!"1;"#*(/1#,/1"<"$#.)"#6%-'),$"1#%*#!"1;"#*(/1#-./.;")#)"+()/$8# !,$#,$#,/#6%/+).$+#+%#+).1,+,%/.&#,/1"<"$0#2!,6!#.)"#6%-'),$"1#%*#,/1,7,1(.&#$"6(),+,"$#,/#+!"#

7.),%($#-.)D"+#$";-"/+$#+!"3#)"')"$"/+#./1#%5")#6%-'&"+"#+)./$'.)"/63#.$#+%#-"-4")$!,'#./1#6%/$+)(6+,%/#-"+!%1%&%;38#:$#$(6!0#$%-"#4"&,"7"#+!.+#!"1;"#*(/1#,/1"<#)"+()/$#!.7"#6")+.,/#4,.$"$#

+!.+#.)"#/%+#')"$"/+#,/#+).1,+,%/.&#,/1"<"$8#>%-"#%*#+!"$"#4,.$"$#,/[.+"#,/1"<#'")*%)-./6"0#2!,&"#%+!")$#-.3#$D"2#'")*%)-./6"#/";.+,7"&38#a%2"7")0#-./3#$+(1,"$#,/1,6.+"#+!.+#%7").&&#!"1;"#*(/1#

,/1"<#'")*%)-./6"#!.$#4""/#4,.$"1#+%#+!"#('$,1"8#>%-"#$+(1,"$#$(;;"$+#'")*%)-./6"#!.$#4""/#,/[.+"1#43#('#+%#_g^#4.$,$#'%,/+$#%)#-%)"#.//(.&&3#1"'"/1,/;#%/#+!"#+3'"$#%*#4,.$"$#,/6&(1"1#./1#+!"#

+,-"#'"),%1#$+(1,"18#:&+!%(;!#+!")"#.)"#/(-")%($#'%+"/+,.&#4,.$"$#+!.+#6%(&1#.5"6+#!"1;"#*(/1#)"+()/$0#2"#,1"/+,*3#$%-"#%*#+!"#-%)"#6%--%/#%/"$#+!)%(;!%(+#+!,$#'.'")8

>"&*R$"&"6+,%/#4,.$#)"$(&+$#2!"/#6")+.,/#-./.;")#)"+()/$#.)"#/%+#,/6&(1"1#,/#+!"#,/1"<#)"+()/$#./1#-.3#)"$(&+#,/#'")*%)-./6"#4",/;#$D"2"1#('#%)#1%2/8#C"6.($"#!"1;"#*(/1$#.)"#'),7.+"#'&.6"-"/+$0#

 !"#$%"&'("



!"1;"#*(/1#-./.;")$#.)"#.4&"#+%#1"6,1"#2!,6!#*(/1#)"+()/$#+!"3#2./+#+%#)"'%)+#./1#.)"#.4&"#+%#%'+#%(+#%*#)"'%)+,/;#+%#+!"#7.),%($#1.+.4.$"$8#F")+.,/#!"1;"#*(/1#-./.;")$#-.3#6!%%$"#%/&3#+%#)"'%)+#

)"+()/$#*%)#*(/1$#2,+!#$+)%/;#)"+()/$#./1#%'+#%(+#%*#)"'%)+,/;#)"+()/$#*%)#2".D#'")*%)-")$8#Y+!")#!"1;"#*(/1$#+!.+#6&%$"#-.3#1"6,1"#+%#$+%'#)"'%)+,/;#,/#%)1")#+%#)"+.,/#$"6)"630#2!,6!#-.3#6.($"#.#

1%2/2.)1#4,.$#,/#)"+()/$8

>()7,7%)$!,'#4,.$#)"$(&+$#2!"/#6")+.,/#6%/$+,+("/+$#.)"#)"-%7"1#*)%-#./#,/1"<8# !,$#%*+"/#)"$(&+$#*)%-#+!"#6&%$()"#%*#*(/1$#1("#+%#'%%)#'")*%)-./6"0#M4&%2#('$0P#%)#%+!")#$(6!#"7"/+$8#:$#$(6!0#+!,$#4,.$#

+3',6.&&3#)"$(&+$#,/#'")*%)-./6"#4",/;#$D"2"1#!,;!")8#:$#/%+"10#!"1;"#*(/1#,/1"<#'")*%)-./6"#4,.$"$#6./#)"$(&+#,/#'%$,+,7"#%)#/";.+,7"#$D"28#a%2"7")0#,+#2%(&1#.''".)#+!.+#+!"#$D"2#,$#-%)"#%*+"/#

'%$,+,7"8#?!,&"#,+#,$#1,b6(&+#+%#J(./+,*3#+!"#"5"6+$#')"6,$"&30#,/7"$+%)$#$!%(&1#4"#.2.)"#+!.+#,1,%$3/6).+,6#*.6+%)$#-.3#4"#;,7,/;#!"1;"#*(/1#,/1"<#)"+()/$#./#.)+,K6,.&#M&,*+P#%)#('2.)1$#4,.$8

X*1#*&E<%10&!2&E<%10&./1#-./3#*(/1$#%*#*(/1$#.)"#'),7.+"#,/7"$+-"/+#7"!,6&"$#)"$+),6+"1#+%#6")+.,/#J(.&,K"1#'),7.+"#./1#,/$+,+(+,%/.&#,/7"$+%)$8# !"3#.)"#%*+"/#$'"6(&.+,7"#./1#,/6&(1"#.#!,;!#1";)""#%*#

),$D8#9/7"$+%)$#6./#&%$"#.&&#%)#.#$(4$+./+,.&#.-%(/+#%*#+!",)#,/7"$+-"/+8# !"3#-.3#4"#!,;!&3#,&&,J(,10#6./#"/;.;"#,/#&"7").;"#./1#%+!")#$'"6(&.+,7"#').6+,6"$#+!.+#-.3#,/6)".$"#7%&.+,&,+3#./1#+!"#),$D#%*#&%$$0#

./1#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#&.);"#,/7"$+-"/+#-,/,-(-$#./1#,/,+,.&#&%6D('$8# !"3#,/7%&7"#6%-'&"<#+.<#$+)(6+()"$0#+.<R,/"b6,"/+#,/7"$+,/;#./1#1"&.3$#,/#1,$+),4(+,/;#,-'%)+./+#+.<#,/*%)-.+,%/8#F.+";%),6.&&30#

!"1;"#*(/1$#./1#*(/1$#%*#*(/1$#!.7"#!,;!")#*""$#./1#"<'"/$"$#+!./#+).1,+,%/.&#,/7"$+-"/+$0#./1#$(6!#*""$#./1#"<'"/$"$#6./#&%2")#+!"#)"+()/$#.6!,"7"1#43#,/7"$+%)$8#S(/1$#%*#*(/1$#!.7"#./#.11,+,%/.&#

&.3")#%*#*""$#%7")#./1#.4%7"#!"1;"#*(/1#*""$#+!.+#2,&&#%5$"+#)"+()/$8#:/#,/7"$+-"/+#,/#./#*T=-$%#*9("$1*1&2<%1&,/7%&7"$#),$D$#$,-,&.)#+%#+!%$"#%*#,/7"$+,/;#,/#.#4)%.1&3#4.$"1#'%)+*%&,%#%*#"J(,+3#

$"6(),+,"$#+).1"1#%/#./#"<6!./;"#,/#+!"#)"&"7./+#$"6(),+,"$#-.)D"+0#$(6!#.$#-.)D"+#[(6+(.+,%/$#6.($"1#43#$(6!#*.6+%)$#.$#"6%/%-,6#./1#'%&,+,6.&#1"7"&%'-"/+$0#6!./;"$#,/#,/+")"$+#).+"$#./1#'")6",7"1#

+)"/1$#,/#$+%6D#./1#4%/1#'),6"$8#:/#,/7"$+-"/+#,/#.#($"#*(&1$(*&F!"(2!)/!&,$#$(4@"6+#+%#+!"#),$D$#.++"/1./+#+%#+!"#(/1")&3,/;#*(/1$#,/#2!,6!#,+#,/7"$+$0#,/#+!"$"#'%)+*%&,%$#+!"#*(/1$#.)"#+!"#F%/$(&+,/;#

U)%('#F.',+.&#=.)D"+#*(/1$8#:#+.);"+#1.+"#'%)+*%&,%#,$#;".)"1#+%#,/7"$+%)$#2!%#2,&&#)"+,)"#./1Q%)#)"J(,)"#,/6%-"#.+#./#.'')%<,-.+"#3".)8# !"#'%)+*%&,%#,$#-./.;"1#+%#-""+#+!"#,/7"$+%)I$#;%.&$#43#+!"#

')"R"$+.4&,$!"1#3".)#%)#M+.);"+#1.+"8P#:#+.);"+#1.+"#'%)+*%&,%#2,&&#+)./$,+,%/#,+$#,/7"$+"1#.$$"+$#*)%-#.#-%)"#.;;)"$$,7"#'%)+*%&,%#+%#.#-%)"#6%/$")7.+,7"#'%)+*%&,%#.$#+!"#+.);"+#1.+"#1).2$#6&%$") 8#:/#

,/7"$+-"/+#,/#+!"#+.);"+#1.+"#'%)+*%&,%#,$#/%+#;(.)./+""1#.+#./3#+,-"0#,/6&(1,/;0#4"*%)"#%)#.*+")#+!"#+.);"+#1.+"#,$#)".6!"18# $%$#*1&2<(<"*0&,/7"$+-"/+$#.)"#$'"6(&.+,7"0#,/7%&7"#.#!,;!#1";)""#%*#),$D0#

($"#$,;/,K6./+#&"7").;"0#.)"#;"/").&&3#,&&,J(,10#!.7"#$(4$+./+,.&#6!.);"$0#$(4@"6+#,/7"$+%)$#+%#6%/[,6+$#%*#,/+")"$+0#./1#.)"#.'')%'),.+"#%/&3#*%)#+!"#),$D#6.',+.&#'%)+,%/#%*#./#,/7"$+%)I$#'%)+*%&,%8#=./.;"1#

*(+()"$#,/7"$+-"/+$#1%#/%+#)"'&.6"#"J(,+,"$#%)#4%/1$#4(+#).+!")#-.3#.6+#.$#.#6%-'&"-"/+#,/#.#2"&&#1,7")$,K"1#'%)+*%&,%8#=./.;"1#S(+()"$#.)"#6%-'&"<#./1#/%+#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#.&&#,/7"$+%)$8#W*7$)$%=/%##

1%"$#/%+#')%+"6+#.;.,/$+#.#&%$$#,/#1"6&,/,/;#K/./6,.&#-.)D"+$8# !")"#-.3#4"#.#'%+"/+,.&#+.<#,-'&,6.+,%/#2,+!#.#)"4.&./6,/;#$+).+";38

B00*(&$))!=$(/!%&$%1&1/A*"0/Z=$(/!%&1%#/%+#.$$()"#.#')%K+#%)#')%+"6+#.;.,/$+#&%$$#,/#1"6&,/,/;#K/./6,.&#-.)D"+$8#L.$+#'")*%)-./6"#,$#/%#;(.)./+""#%*#*(+()"#)"$(&+$8#:6+(.&#)"$(&+$#-.3#7.)38

G$T&)$Q0&$"*&=!.F)*T&$%1&0<7S*=(&(!&=-$%#*;& !"#$%&'($%)*+&'./(-&3$"%*+&445&C\ !"#$%&'($%)*+]D6&/(0&$^)/$(*0&$%1& !"#$%&'($%)*+&E/%$%=/$)&B1A/0!"0&$%1&J"/A$(*&,*$)(-&B1A/0!"0&1!&%!(&

F"!A/1*&($T&!"&)*#$)&$1A/=*&$%1&$"*&%!(&\Z1<=/$"/*0]&C<%1*"&UW@'B6&(-*&@%(*"%$)&W*A*%<*&5!1*&!"&!(-*"Q/0*D&Q/(-&"*0F*=(&(!&(-*&0*"A/=*0&!"&$=(/A/(/*0&1*0="/7*1&-*"*/%&*T=*F(&$0&!(-*"Q/0*&

F"!A/1*1&/%&Q"/(/%#&7+& !"#$%&'($%)*+&$%1_!"&$0&1*0="/7*1&$(&QQQ;.!"#$%0($%)*+;=!._1/0=)!0<"*0_1!);&@%1/A/1<$)0&$"*&*%=!<"$#*1&(!&=!%0<)(&(-*/"&($T&$%1&)*#$)&$1A/0!"0&C$D&7*2!"*&

*0($7)/0-/%#&$&"*(/"*.*%(&F)$%&!"&$==!<%(6&$%1&C7D&"*#$"1/%#&$%+&F!(*%(/$)&($T6&UW@'B&$%1&"*)$(*1&=!%0*`<*%=*0&!2&$%+&/%A*0(.*%(0&.$1*&<%1*"&0<=-&F)$%&!"&$==!<%(;

://(,+,"$#./1#,/$()./6"#')%1(6+$#.)"#%5")"1#,/#6%/@(/6+,%/#2,+!#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEFI$#&,6"/$"1#,/$()./6"#.;"/63#.b&,.+"$8

9/1,6"$#.)"#(/-./.;"1#./1#,/7"$+%)$#6.//%+#1,)"6+&3#,/7"$+#,/#+!"-8# !"3#.)"#/%+#$(4@"6+#+%#"<'"/$"$#%)#*""$#./1#.)"#%*+"/#6%-'),$"1#%*#$"6(),+,"$#./1#%+!")#,/7"$+-"/+#,/$+)(-"/+$#+!"#&,J(,1,+3#%*#

2!,6!#,$#/%+#)"$+),6+"18#:#'.)+,6(&.)#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+#-.3#6%/$,$+#%*#$"6(),+,"$#$,;/,K6./+&3#1,5")"/+#+!./#+!%$"#,/#./3#,/1"<#)"*"))"1#+%#!")",/ 8#F%-'%$,+"#,/1"<#)"$(&+$#.)"#$!%2/#*%)#,&&($+).+,7"#

'()'%$"$#%/&30#;"/").&&3#1%#/%+#)"')"$"/+#+!"#'")*%)-./6"#%*#.#$'"6,K6#,/7"$+-"/+0#-.3#/%+0#*%)#.#7.),"+3#%*#)".$%/$0#4"#./#.'')%'),.+"#6%-'.),$%/#%)#4"/6!-.)D#*%)#.#'.)+,6(&.)#,/7"$+-"/+#./1#-.3#

/%+#/"6"$$.),&3#)"["6+#+!"#.6+(.&#,/7"$+-"/+#$+).+";3#%)#%4@"6+,7"#%*#.#'.)+,6(&.)#,/7"$+-"/+8#F%/$"J("/+&30#6%-'.),/;#./#,/7"$+-"/+#+%#.#'.)+,6(&.)#,/1"<#-.3#4"#%*#&,-,+"1#($"8

 !,$#-.+"),.&#,$#/%+#.#K/./6,.&#'&./#./1#1%"$#/%+#6)".+"#./#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,$%)3#)"&.+,%/$!,'#4"+2""/#3%(#./1#3%()#=%);./#>+./&"3#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)8#?"#.)"#/%+#3%()#K1(6,.)3#",+!")#(/1")#+!"#

G-'&%3""#`"+,)"-"/+#9/6%-"#>"6(),+3#:6+#%*#\he]#AG`9>:B#%)#+!"#9/+")/.&#`"7"/("#F%1"#%*#\hdg0#./1#./3#,/*%)-.+,%/#,/#+!,$#)"'%)+#,$#/%+#,/+"/1"1#+%#*%)-#+!"#'),-.)3#4.$,$#*%)#./3#,/7"$+-"/+#1"6,$,%/#

43#3%(0#%)#./#,/7"$+-"/+#.17,6"#%)#)"6%--"/1.+,%/#*%)#",+!")#G`9>:#%)#9/+")/.&#`"7"/("#F%1"#'()'%$"$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#L),7.+"#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#2,&&#%/&3#')"'.)"#.#K/./6,.&#'&./#.+#3%()#$'"6,K6#

)"J("$+#($,/;#L),7.+"#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#.'')%7"1#K/./6,.&#'&.//,/;#$,;/.+()"8

?"#-.3#.6+#,/#+!"#6.'.6,+3#%*#.#4)%D")#%)#+!.+#%*#./#.17,$%)8#:$#3%()#4)%D")0#2"#.)"#/%+#3%()#K1(6,.)3#./1#%()#,/+")"$+$#-.3#/%+#.&2.3$#4"#,1"/+,6.&#+%#3%()$8#L&".$"#6%/$(&+#2,+!#3%()#L),7.+"#?".&+!#

:17,$%)#+%#1,$6($$#%()#%4&,;.+,%/$#+%#1,$6&%$"#+%#3%(#./3#6%/[,6+$#2"#-.3#*)%-#+,-"#+%#+,-"#!.7"#./1#%()#1(+3#+%#.6+#,/#3%()#4"$+#,/+")"$+8#?"#-.3#4"#'.,1#4%+!#43#3%(#./1#43#%+!")$#2!%#6%-'"/$.+"#

($#4.$"1#%/#2!.+#3%(#4(38#Y()#6%-'"/$.+,%/0#,/6&(1,/;#+!.+#%*#3%()#L),7.+"#?".&+!#:17,$%)0#-.3#7.)3#43#')%1(6+#./1#%7")#+,-"8

9/7"$+-"/+#./1#$")7,6"$#%5")"1#+!)%(;!#=%);./#>+./&"3#L),7.+"#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+0#.#1,7,$,%/#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF0#="-4")#>9LF8

 !"#$%"&'("



4*,"#!0%@?"#!0#9)'*,")!0"&/,$%+"0%A!#'#*!&",%.%,%!9%0"#!"'3#&",%7*,'"75%)&%"$#&#'"'3%".*55*B#!1C"3''7&CDDBBB;(*,1)!&')!5%+;9*(DB%)5'3E#!$%&'(%!'&*5/'#*!&DB(#,E0%A!#'#*!&

?4H3B4&@RMU'G URG&5H  @GGUU&C?@5D&B''UG&B44H5BG@HR& H>U4'O# !"#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$#.)"#6)".+"1#43#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+I$#U9F8#

XPJHGXUG@5B4& H>U4&JUWEHW BR5U&C?WH''DO#a3'%+!"+,6.&#-%1"&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#1%#/%+#)"["6+#+!"#,/7"$+-"/+#%)#'")*%)-./6"#%*#./#.6+(.&#'%)+*%&,%#*%&&%2,/;#.#U9F#>+).+";30#4(+#$,-'&3#

)"["6+#.6+(.&#!,$+%),6.&#'")*%)-./6"#%*#$"&"6+"1#,/1,6"$#%/#.#)".&R+,-"#4.$,$#%7")#+!"#$'"6,K"1#'"),%1#%*#+,-"#)"')"$"/+,/;#+!"#U9FI$#$+).+";,6#./1#+.6+,6.&#.&&%6.+,%/$#.$#%*#+!"#1.+"#%*#+!,$#)"'%)+ 8# !"#

'.$+#'")*%)-./6"#$!%2/#!")"#,$#$,-(&.+"1#'")*%)-./6"#4.$"1#%/#4"/6!-.)D#,/1,6"$0#/%+#,/7"$+-"/+#)"$(&+$#*)%-#./#.6+(.&#'%)+*%&,%#%)#.6+(.&#+).1,/;8# !")"#6./#4"#&.);"#1,5")"/6"$#4"+2""/#

!3'%+!"+,6.&#./1#.6+(.&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#.6!,"7"1#43#.#'.)+,6(&.)#.$$"+#.&&%6.+,%/#%)#+).1,/;#$+).+";38#a3'%+!"+,6.&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#1%#/%+#)"')"$"/+#.6+(.&#+).1,/;#./1#.)"#;"/").&&3#1"$,;/"1#

2,+!#+!"#4"/"K+#%*#!,/1$,;!+8#:6+(.&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#%*#.66%(/+$#7.)3#1("#+%0#*%)#"<.-'&"0#-.)D"+#*.6+%)$#A$(6!#.$#&,J(,1,+3B#./1#6&,"/+R$'"6,K6#*.6+%)$#A$(6!#.$#,/7"$+-"/+#7"!,6&"#$"&"6+,%/0#+,-,/;#

%*#6%/+),4(+,%/$#./1#2,+!1).2.&$0#)"$+),6+,%/$#./1#)"4.&./6,/;#$6!"1(&"$B8#F&,"/+$#2%(&1#/%+#/"6"$$.),&3#!.7"#%4+.,/"1#+!"#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#$!%2/#!")"#,*#+!"3#!.1#,/7"$+"1#,/#.66%)1./6"#2,+!#./3#

U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&#*%)#+!"#'"),%1$#,/1,6.+"18#N"$',+"#+!"#&,-,+.+,%/$#%*#!3'%+!"+,6.&#'")*%)-./6"0#+!"$"#!3'%+!"+,6.&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#.&&%2#6&,"/+$#./1#S,/./6,.&#:17,$%)$#+%#%4+.,/#.#$"/$"#

%*#+!"#),$DQ)"+()/#+).1"R%5#%*#1,5")"/+#.$$"+#.&&%6.+,%/#6%/$+)(6+$8# !"#!3'%+!"+,6.&#'")*%)-./6"#)"$(&+$#,/#+!,$#)"'%)+#.)"#6.&6(&.+"1#($,/;#+!"#)"+()/$#%*#4"/6!-.)D#,/1,6"$#*%)#+!"#.$$"+#6&.$$"$0#./1#

/%+#+!"#)"+()/$#%*#$"6(),+,"$0#*(/1#%)#%+!")#,/7"$+-"/+#')%1(6+$8#=%1"&$#-.3#6%/+.,/#.&&%6.+,%/$#+%#a"1;"#S(/1$0#L),7.+"#GJ(,+3#./1#L),7.+"#`".&#G$+.+"8# !"#4"/6!-.)D#,/1,6"$#*%)#+!"$"#.$$"+#6&.$$"$#

.)"#/%+#,$$("1#%/#.#1.,&3#4.$,$8#?!"/#6.&6(&.+,/;#-%1"&#'")*%)-./6"#%/#.#1.3#*%)#2!,6!#/%#4"/6!-.)D#,/1"<#1.+.#,$#,$$("10#2"#!.7"#.$$(-"1#$+).,;!+#&,/"#;)%2+!#4"+2""/#+!"#,/1"<#&"7"&$#,$$("1#4"*%)"#

./1#.*+")#+!.+#1.+"8

EUU'&WU>:5U&GXU&JUWEHW BR5U&HE&B5G:B4&B55H:RG'O#W%/"#%*#+!"#*""$#%)#%+!")#"<'"/$"$#A"8;8#6%--,$$,%/$0#-.)DR('$0#-.)DR1%2/$0#*""$B#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#.6+(.&#+).1,/;#%)#.66%(/+$#.)"#

)"["6+"1#,/#+!"#U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$8# !"#U9F#:$$"+#:&&%6.+,%/#=%1"&$#./1#./3#-%1"&#'")*%)-./6"#,/6&(1"1#,/#+!,$#')"$"/+.+,%/#.)"#,/+"/1"1#.$#"1(6.+,%/.&#-.+"),.&$ 8#?")"#.#6&,"/+#+%#($"#+!"$"#

-%1"&$#,/#6%//"6+,%/#2,+!#,/7"$+,/;0#./3#,/7"$+-"/+#1"6,$,%/$#-.1"#2%(&1#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#+)./$.6+,%/#./1#%+!")#6%$+$#2!,6!0#2!"/#6%-'%(/1"1#%7")#.#'"),%1#%*#3".)$0#2%(&1#1"6)".$"#)"+()/$8#

9/*%)-.+,%/#)";.)1,/;#=%);./#>+./&"3I$#$+./1.)1#.17,$%)3#*""$#,$#.7.,&.4&"#,/#+!"#S%)-#:NO#L.)+#_0#2!,6!#,$#.7.,&.4&"#.+#2228-%);./$+./&"386%-Q.178# !"#*%&&%2,/;#!3'%+!"+,6.&#,&&($+).+"$#+!"#

6%-'%(/1#"5"6+#*""$#!.7"#%/#,/7"$+-"/+#)"+()/$V#S%)#"<.-'&"0#,*#.#'%)+*%&,%I$#.//(.&#).+"#%*#)"+()/#,$#\fk#*%)#f#3".)$#./1#+!"#.66%(/+#'.3$#f^#4.$,$#'%,/+$#,/#*""$#'")#.//(-0#+!"#;)%$$#6(-(&.+,7"#

K7"R3".)#)"+()/#2%(&1#4"#\^\8\k#./1#+!"#K7"R3".)#)"+()/#/"+#%*#*""$#2%(&1#4"#hg8dk8#S""$#./1Q%)#"<'"/$"$#2%(&1#.''&3#+%#6&,"/+$#2!%#,/7"$+#,/#,/7"$+-"/+$#,/#./#.66%(/+#4.$"1#%/#+!"$"#.$$"+#

.&&%6.+,%/$0#./1#2%(&1#)"1(6"#6&,"/+$I#)"+()/$8# !"#,-'.6+#%*#*""$#./1Q%)#"<'"/$"$#6./#4"#-.+"),.&8

M$"/$7)*&$%%</(/*0#.)"#&%/;R+")-#,/7"$+-"/+$#1"$,;/"1#*%)#)"+,)"-"/+#'()'%$"$#./1#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#-.)D"+#[(6+(.+,%/$0#,/7"$+-"/+#),$D0#./1#'%$$,4&"#&%$$#%*#'),/6,'.&8#:&&#;(.)./+""$0#,/6&(1,/;#

%'+,%/.&#4"/"K+$0#.)"#4.$"1#%/#+!"#K/./6,.&#$+)"/;+!#./1#6&.,-$R'.3,/;#.4,&,+3#%*#+!"#,$$(,/;#,/$()./6"#6%-'./3#./1#1%#/%+#.''&3#+%#+!"#(/1")&3,/;#,/7"$+-"/+#%'+,%/$8#Y'+,%/.&#),1")$#-.3#/%+#4"#.4&"#

+%#4"#'()6!.$"1#,/#6%-4,/.+,%/#./1#.)"#.7.,&.4&"#.+#./#.11,+,%/.&#6%$+8#>%-"#%'+,%/.&#),1")$#-($+#4"#"&"6+"1#.+#+,-"#%*#'()6!.$"8#Y'+,%/.&#),1")$#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#$'"6,K6#&,-,+.+,%/$0#)"$+),6+,%/$0#

!%&1,/;#'"),%1$0#6%$+$0#./1#"<'"/$"$#.$#$'"6,K"1#43#+!"#,/$()./6"#6%-'./3#,/#+!"#.//(,+3#6%/+).6+8#9*#3%(#.)"#,/7"$+,/;#,/#.#A$"/$7)*&$%%</(+#+!)%(;!#.#+.<R.17./+.;"1#)"+,)"-"/+#'&./#$(6!#.$#./#9`:0#

3%(#2,&&#;"+#/%#.11,+,%/.&#+.<#.17./+.;"#*)%-#+!"#7.),.4&"#.//(,+38#c/1")#+!"$"#6,)6(-$+./6"$0#3%(#$!%(&1#%/&3#6%/$,1")#4(3,/;#.#7.),.4&"#.//(,+3#4"6.($"#%*#,+$#%+!")#*".+()"$0#$(6!#.$#&,*"+,-"#,/6%-"#

'.3-"/+$#./1#1".+!#4"/"K+$#')%+"6+,%/8# .<.4&"#1,$+),4(+,%/$#A./1#6")+.,/#1""-"1#1,$+),4(+,%/$B#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#%)1,/.)3#,/6%-"#+.<#./10#,*#+.D"/#'),%)#+%#.;"#fht0#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#.#\^k#*"1").&#

,/6%-"#+.<#'"/.&+38#G.)&3#2,+!1).2.&$#2,&&#)"1(6"#+!"#1".+!#4"/"K+#./1#6.$!#$())"/1")#7.&("8

U`</(+&0*=<"/(/*0#-.3#[(6+(.+"#,/#)"$'%/$"#+%#/"2$#%/#6%-'./,"$0#,/1($+),"$0#-.)D"+#6%/1,+,%/$#./1#;"/").&#"6%/%-,6#"/7,)%/-"/+8#:)("$0-!"(9(*".&ZT*1&/%=!.*#.$$"+#6&.$$#,$#6%-'),$"1#%*#K<"1#

,/6%-"#$"6(),+,"$#2,+!#!,;!#J(.&,+30#7")3#$!%)+#-.+(),+,"$8# !"3#.)"#+!")"*%)"#$(4@"6+#+%#+!"#),$D$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#1"4+#$"6(),+,"$#$(6!#.$#6)"1,+#./1#,/+")"$+#).+"#),$D 8

 $0(*"&4/./(*1&J$"(%*"0-/F0&C 4J0D#.)"#&,-,+"1#'.)+/")$!,'$#%)#&,-,+"1#&,.4,&,+3#6%-'./,"$#+!.+#.)"#+.<"1#.$#'.)+/")$!,'$#./1#2!%$"#,/+")"$+$#A&,-,+"1#'.)+/")$!,'#(/,+$#%)#&,-,+"1#&,.4,&,+3#6%-'./3#

(/,+$B#.)"#+).1"1#%/#$"6(),+,"$#"<6!./;"$#&,D"#$!.)"$#%*#6%--%/#$+%6D8#F())"/+&30#-%$+#=EL$#%'").+"#,/#+!"#"/");30#/.+().&#)"$%()6"$#%)#)".&#"$+.+"#$"6+%)$8#9/7"$+-"/+$#,/#=EL#,/+")"$+$#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#

+!"#),$D$#;"/").&&3#.''&,6.4&"#+%#6%-'./,"$#,/#+!"#"/");3#./1#/.+().&#)"$%()6"$#$"6+%)$0#,/6&(1,/;#6%--%1,+3#'),6,/;#),$D0#$(''&3#./1#1"-./1#),$D0#1"'&"+,%/#),$D#./1#"<'&%).+,%/#),$D8#9/1,7,1(.&#=EL$#

.)"#'(4&,6&3#+).1"1#'.)+/")$!,'$#+!.+#!.7"#(/,J("#),$D$#)"&.+"1#+%#+!",)#$+)(6+()"8# !"$"#,/6&(1"0#4(+#.)"#/%+#&,-,+"1#+%0#+!",)#)"&,./6"#%/#+!"#6.',+.&#-.)D"+$#+%#*(/1#;)%2+!0#.17")$"#)(&,/;#%/#+!"#6())"/+#

+.<#+)".+-"/+#%*#1,$+),4(+,%/$#A+3',6.&&3#-%$+&3#+.<#1"*"))"1B0#./1#6%--%1,+3#7%&(-"#),$D8# !"#'%+"/+,.&#+.<#4"/"K+$#*)%-#,/7"$+,/;#,/#=EL$#1"'"/1#%/#+!",)#4",/;#+)".+"1#.$#'.)+/")$!,'$#*%)#*"1").&#

,/6%-"#+.<#'()'%$"$#./10#,*#+!"#=EL#,$#1""-"1#+%#4"#.#6%)'%).+,%/0#+!"/#,+$#,/6%-"#2%(&1#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#*"1").&#+.<.+,%/#.+#+!"#"/+,+3#&"7"&0#)"1(6,/;#+!"#.-%(/+#%*#6.$!#.7.,&.4&"#*%)#1,$+),4(+,%/#+%#+!"#

*(/1#2!,6!#6%(&1#)"$(&+#,/#.#)"1(6+,%/#%*#+!"#*(/1I$#7.&("8#=EL$#6.))3#,/+")"$+#).+"#),$D#./1#-.3#(/1")'")*%)-#,/#.#),$,/;#,/+")"$+#).+"#"/7,)%/-"/+8#=EL#*(/1$#.66)("#1"*"))"1#,/6%-"#+.<"$#*%)#*(+()"#

+.<#&,.4,&,+,"$#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#+!"#'%)+,%/#%*#=EL#1,$+),4(+,%/$#6%/$,1")"1#+%#4"#.#+.<R1"*"))"1#)"+()/#%*#6.',+.&#./1#*%)#./3#/"+#%'").+,/;#;.,/$#.$#2"&&#.$#6.',+.&#.'')"6,.+,%/#%*#,+$#,/7"$+-"/+$H#+!,$#

1"*"))"1#+.<#&,.4,&,+3#,$#)"["6+"1#,/#+!"#1.,&3#W:O0#./10#.$#.#)"$(&+0#+!"#=EL#*(/1I$#.*+")R+.<#'")*%)-./6"#6%(&1#1,5")#$,;/,K6./+&3#*)%-#+!"#(/1")&3,/;#.$$"+$#"7"/#,*#+!"#')"R+.<#'")*%)-./6"#,$#6&%$"&3#

 !"#$%"&'("



+).6D"18

@%A*0(/%#&/%&=!..!1/(/*0#"/+.,&$#$,;/,K6./+#),$D$8#F%--%1,+3#'),6"$#-.3#4"#.5"6+"1#43#.#7.),"+3#%*#*.6+%)$#.+#./3#+,-"0#,/6&(1,/;#4(+#/%+#&,-,+"1#+%0#A,B#6!./;"$#,/#$(''&3#./1#1"-./1#)"&.+,%/$!,'$0#A,,B#

;%7")/-"/+.&#')%;).-$#./1#'%&,6,"$0#A,,,B#/.+,%/.&#./1#,/+")/.+,%/.&#'%&,+,6.&#./1#"6%/%-,6#"7"/+$0#2.)#./1#+"))%),$+#"7"/+$0#A,7B#6!./;"$#,/#,/+")"$+#./1#"<6!./;"#).+"$0#A7B#+).1,/;#.6+,7,+,"$#,/#

6%--%1,+,"$#./1#)"&.+"1#6%/+).6+$0#A7,B#'"$+,&"/6"0#+"6!/%&%;,6.&#6!./;"#./1#2".+!")0#./1#A7,,B#+!"#'),6"#7%&.+,&,+3#%*#.#6%--%1,+38#9/#.11,+,%/0#+!"#6%--%1,+,"$#-.)D"+$#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#+"-'%).)3#

1,$+%)+,%/$#%)#%+!")#1,$)('+,%/$#1("#+%#7.),%($#*.6+%)$0#,/6&(1,/;#&.6D#%*#&,J(,1,+30#'.)+,6,'.+,%/#%*#$'"6(&.+%)$#./1#;%7")/-"/+#,/+")7"/+,%/8#J-+0/=$)&F"*=/!<0&.*($)0#.)"#/%/R)";(&.+"1#')%1(6+$8#

L)"6,%($#-"+.&$#.)"#$'"6(&.+,7"#,/7"$+-"/+$0#2!,6!#-.3#"<'"),"/6"#$!%)+R+")-#./1#&%/;#+")-#'),6"#7%&.+,&,+38# !"#7.&("#%*#')"6,%($#-"+.&$#,/7"$+-"/+$#-.3#[(6+(.+"#./1#-.3#.'')"6,.+"#%)#1"6&,/"0#

1"'"/1,/;#%/#-.)D"+#6%/1,+,%/$8#c/&,D"#4%/1$#./1#$+%6D$0#')"6,%($#-"+.&$#1%#/%+#-.D"#,/+")"$+#%)#1,7,1"/1#'.3-"/+$8# !")"*%)"0#')"6,%($#-"+.&$#-.3#/%+#4"#.'')%'),.+"#*%)#,/7"$+%)$#2!%#)"J(,)"#

6())"/+#,/6%-"8#L)"6,%($#-"+.&$#.)"#6%--%1,+,"$#+!.+#$!%(&1#4"#$.*"&3#$+%)"10#2!,6!#-.3#,-'%$"#.11,+,%/.&#6%$+$#%/#+!"#,/7"$+%)8

WU@G0#,/7"$+,/;#),$D$#.)"#$,-,&.)#+%#+!%$"#.$$%6,.+"1#2,+!#1,)"6+#,/7"$+-"/+$#,/#)".&#"$+.+"V#')%'")+3#7.&("#[(6+(.+,%/$0#&.6D#%*#&,J(,1,+30#&,-,+"1#1,7")$,K6.+,%/#./1#$"/$,+,7,+3#+%#"6%/%-,6#*.6+%)$#$(6!#.$#

,/+")"$+#).+"#6!./;"$#./1#-.)D"+#)"6"$$,%/$8#`,$D$#%*#F"/A$(*&"*$)&*0($(*#,/6&(1"V#,&&,J(,1,+3H#.#&%/;R+")-#,/7"$+-"/+#!%),l%/#2,+!#.#&,-,+"1#%)#/%/"<,$+"/+#$"6%/1.)3#-.)D"+H#&.6D#%*#+)./$'.)"/63H#

7%&.+,&,+3#A),$D#%*#&%$$BH#./1#&"7").;"8#L),/6,'.&#,$#)"+()/"1#%/#.#-%/+!&3#4.$,$#%7")#+!"#&,*"#%*#.#.!"(#$#*97$=8*1&0*=<"/(+;#L),/6,'.&#')"'.3-"/+#6./#$,;/,K6./+&3#.5"6+#+!"#-%/+!&3#,/6%-"#$+)".-#./1#

+!"#-.+(),+3#%*#./3#+3'"#%*#=C>0#,/6&(1,/;#$+./1.)1#=C>0#F=Y$#./1#E%++")3#C%/1$8#B00*(97$=8*1&0*=<"/(/*0#;"/").&&3#1"6)".$"#,/#7.&("#.$#.#)"$(&+#%*#,/+")"$+#).+"#,/6)".$"$0#4(+#-.3#4"/"K+#&"$$#+!./#

%+!")#K<"1R,/6%-"#$"6(),+,"$#*)%-#1"6&,/,/;#,/+")"$+#).+"$0#'),/6,'.&&3#4"6.($"#%*#')"'.3-"/+$8

P/*)10#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#6!./;"#2,+!#"6%/%-,6#6%/1,+,%/$8#Z,"&1#,$#%/&3#%/"#*.6+%)#+!.+#$!%(&1#4"#6%/$,1")"1#2!"/#-.D,/;#./#,/7"$+-"/+#1"6,$,%/8#5"*1/(&"$(/%#0#.)"#$(4@"6+#+%#6!./;"8#><"$(/!%0#+!"#

-%$+#6%--%/&3#($"1#-".$()"#%*#4%/1#),$D0#J(./+,K"$#+!"#"5"6+#%*#6!./;"$#,/#,/+")"$+#).+"$#%/#+!"#'),6"#%*#.#4%/1#%)#4%/1#'%)+*%&,%8# !"#&%/;")#+!"#1().+,%/0#+!"#-%)"#$"/$,+,7"#+!"#4%/1#%)#'%)+*%&,%#

2%(&1#4"#+%#6!./;"$#,/#,/+")"$+#).+"$8# !"#-.@%),+3#%*#u_f#./1#u\^^^#'.)#F"*2*""*1&0*=<"/(/*0#.)"#M6.&&.4&"P#-"./,/;#+!.+#+!"#,$$(")#-.3#)"+,)"#+!"#$"6(),+,"$#.+#$'"6,K6#'),6"$#./1#1.+"$#'),%)#+%#

-.+(),+38#9/+")"$+Q1,7,1"/1#'.3-"/+$#%/#6")+.,/#')"*"))"1#,$$("$#-.3#4"#1"*"))"1#43#+!"#,$$(")#*%)#'"),%1$#%*#('#+%#f#+%#\^#3".)$0#1"'"/1,/;#%/#+!"#'.)+,6(&.)#,$$("8# !"#,/7"$+%)#2%(&1#$+,&&#!.7"#,/6%-"#

+.<#&,.4,&,+3#"7"/#+!%(;!#'.3-"/+$#2%(&1#/%+#!.7"#4""/#)"6",7"18#L),6"#J(%+"1#,$#'")#u_f#%)#u\0^^^#$!.)"0#(/&"$$#%+!")2,$"#$'"6,K"18#F())"/+#3,"&1#,$#6.&6(&.+"1#43#-(&+,'&3,/;#+!"#6%('%/#43#'.)#7.&("#

1,7,1"1#43#+!"#-.)D"+#'),6"8# !"#,/,+,.&#,/+")"$+#).+"#%/#.#N!$(/%#9"$(*&0*=<"/(+#-.3#4"#&%2")#+!./#+!.+#%*#.#K<"1R).+"#$"6(),+3#%*#+!"#$.-"#-.+(),+3#4"6.($"#,/7"$+%)$#"<'"6+#+%#)"6",7"#.11,+,%/.&#

,/6%-"#1("#+%#*(+()"#,/6)".$"$#,/#+!"#[%.+,/;#$"6(),+3I$#(/1")&3,/;#)"*")"/6"#).+"8# !"#)"*")"/6"#).+"#6%(&1#4"#./#,/1"<#%)#./#,/+")"$+#).+"8#a%2"7")0#+!")"#6./#4"#/%#.$$()./6"#+!.+#+!"#)"*")"/6"#).+"#

2,&&#,/6)".$"8#>%-"#[%.+,/;R).+"#$"6(),+,"$#-.3#4"#$(4@"6+#+%#6.&&#),$D8# !"#-.)D"+#7.&("#%*#=!%A*"(/7)*&7!%10#./1#+!"#(/1")&3,/;#6%--%/#$+%6DA$B#2,&&#[(6+(.+"#./1#.*+")#'()6!.$"#-.3#4"#2%)+!#-%)"#

%)#&"$$#+!./#%),;,/.&#6%$+8#9*#$%&1#'),%)#+%#-.+(),+30#,/7"$+%)$#-.3#)"6",7"#-%)"#%)#&"$$#+!./#+!",)#%),;,/.&#'()6!.$"#'),6"#%)#-.+(),+3#7.&("0#1"'"/1,/;#%/#-.)D"+#6%/1,+,%/$8#F.&&.4&"#4%/1$#-.3#4"#

)"1""-"1#43#+!"#,$$(")#'),%)#+%#-.+(),+38#:11,+,%/.&#6.&&#*".+()"$#-.3#"<,$+#+!.+#6%(&1#.5"6+#3,"&18#>%-"#u_f#%)#u\^^^#F$"&F"*2*""*1&0*=<"/(/*0#.)"#vN9#Av(.&,K"1#N,7,1"/1#9/6%-"B#"&,;,4&"8#9/*%)-.+,%/#

%/#vN9#"&,;,4,&,+3#,$#%4+.,/"1#*)%-#+!,)1#'.)+3#$%()6"$8# !"#1,7,1"/1#,/6%-"#%/#vN9#"&,;,4&"#')"*"))"1$#J(.&,K"$#*%)#.#)"1(6"1#+.<#).+"8#=./3#+).1,+,%/.&#X1,7,1"/1#'.3,/;I#'")'"+(.&#')"*"))"1#$"6(),+,"$#

A+).1,+,%/.&#')"*"))"1$#2,+!#/%#-.+(),+3#1.+"B#.)"#vN9#"&,;,4&"8#9/#%)1")#+%#J(.&,*3#*%)#+!"#')"*")"/+,.&#+.<#+)".+-"/+#.&&#J(.&,*3,/;#')"*"))"1#$"6(),+,"$#-($+#4"#!"&1#43#,/7"$+%)$#*%)#.#-,/,-(-#'"),%1#i#h\#

1.3$#1(),/;#.#\d^#1.3#2,/1%2#'"),%10#4";,//,/;#h^#1.3$#4"*%)"#+!"#"<R1,7,1"/1#1.+"8

F%-'./,"$#'.3,/;#1/A/1*%10#6./#)"1(6"#%)#6(+#'.3%(+$#.+#./3#+,-"8

R!%1/A*"0/Z=$(/!%O#S%)#.#'%)+*%&,%#+!.+#!%&1$#.#6%/6"/+).+"1#%)#&,-,+"1#/(-4")#%*#$"6(),+,"$0#.#1"6&,/"#,/#+!"#7.&("#%*#+!"$"#,/7"$+-"/+$#2%(&1#6.($"#+!"#'%)+*%&,%I$#%7").&&#7.&("#+%#1"6&,/"#+%#.#;)".+")#

1";)""#+!./#.#&"$$#6%/6"/+).+"1#'%)+*%&,%8# !"#/%1/=*0&0*)*=(*1&7+& !"#$%&'($%)*+&,*$)(-& $%$#*.*%(#+%#-".$()"#'")*%)-./6"#.)"#)"')"$"/+.+,7"#%*#4)%.1#.$$"+#6&.$$"$8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#

=./.;"-"/+#)"+.,/$#+!"#),;!+#+%#6!./;"#)"')"$"/+.+,7"#,/1,6"$#.+#./3#+,-"8#C"6.($"#%*#+!",)#/.))%2#*%6($0#0*=(!"&/%A*0(.*%(0#+"/1#+%#4"#-%)"#7%&.+,&"#+!./#,/7"$+-"/+$#+!.+#1,7")$,*3#.6)%$$#-./3#

$"6+%)$#./1#6%-'./,"$8

?"!Q(-&/%A*0(/%##1%"$#/%+#;(.)./+""#.#')%K+#%)#"&,-,/.+"#),$D8# !"#$+%6D$#%*#+!"$"#6%-'./,"$#6./#!.7"#)"&.+,7"&3#!,;!#7.&(.+,%/$8#C"6.($"#%*#+!"$"#!,;!#7.&(.+,%/$0#./#,/7"$+-"/+#,/#.#;)%2+!#$+%6D#

6./#4"#-%)"#),$D3#+!./#./#,/7"$+-"/+#,/#.#6%-'./3#2,+!#-%)"#-%1"$+#;)%2+!#"<'"6+.+,%/$8#M$)<*&/%A*0(/%##1%"$#/%+#;(.)./+""#.#')%K+#%)#"&,-,/.+"#),$D8#W%+#.&&#6%-'./,"$#2!%$"#$+%6D$#.)"#

6%/$,1")"1#+%#4"#7.&("#$+%6D$#.)"#.4&"#+%#+()/#+!",)#4($,/"$$#.)%(/1#%)#$(66"$$*(&&3#"-'&%3#6%))"6+,7"#$+).+";,"$#2!,6!#2%(&1#)"$(&+#,/#$+%6D#'),6"$#+!.+#1%#/%+#),$"#.$#,/,+,.&&3#"<'"6+"1 8

:/3#+3'"#%*#=!%(/%<!<0&!"&F*"/!1/=&/%A*0(.*%(&F)$%#1%"$#/%+#.$$()"#.#')%K+#./1#1%"$#/%+#')%+"6+#.;.,/$+#&%$$#,/#1"6&,/,/;#-.)D"+$8#>,/6"#$(6!#.#'&./#,/7%&7"$#6%/+,/(%($#,/7"$+-"/+#,/#$"6(),+,"$#

)";.)1&"$$#%*#[(6+(.+,/;#'),6"#&"7"&$#%*#$(6!#$"6(),+,"$0#+!"#,/7"$+%)#$!%(&1#6%/$,1")#!,$#K/./6,.&#.4,&,+3#+%#6%/+,/("#!,$#'()6!.$"$#+!)%(;!#'"),%1$#%*#&%2#'),6"#&"7"&$ 8

 !,$#-.+"),.&#,$#1,$$"-,/.+"1#,/#+!"#c/,+"1#>+.+"$#%*#:-"),6.#43#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF8#=%);./#>+./&"3#?".&+!#=./.;"-"/+#,$#/%+#.6+,/;#.$#.#-(/,6,'.&#.17,$%)#+%#./3#-(/,6,'.&#"/+,+3#%)#

%4&,;.+"1#'")$%/#2,+!,/#+!"#-"./,/;#%*#>"6+,%/#\fC#%*#+!"#>"6(),+,"$#G<6!./;"#:6+#A+!"#M=(/,6,'.&#:17,$%)#`(&"PB#./1#+!"#%',/,%/$#%)#7,"2$#6%/+.,/"1#!")",/#.)"#/%+#,/+"/1"1#+%#4" 0#./1#1%#/%+#

6%/$+,+(+"0#.17,6"#2,+!,/#+!"#-"./,/;#%*#+!"#=(/,6,'.&#:17,$%)#`(&"8# !,$#-.+"),.&0#%)#./3#'%)+,%/#+!")"%*0#-.3#/%+#4"#)"'),/+"10#$%&1#%)#)"1,$+),4(+"1#2,+!%(+#+!"#2),++"/#6%/$"/+#%*#=%);./#>+./&"3#

>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF8

w#_^_^#=%);./#>+./&"3#>-,+!#C.)/"3#EEF8#="-4")#>9LF8

 !"#$%"&'("



 

 

 
 

Items for Discussion 
 

 
1.) Consider reducing First Eagle Global by 2% in Next Gen account and 3% in  

Weinberg account. Use the proceeds to increase iShares Small Cap ETF (IJR). This 
would take small cap exposure from 8% to 10% for Next Gen and 7% to 10% for 
Weinberg.  

 Rationale: Reducing First Eagle Global locks in gain and brings 
international exposure closer in-line with the target weight. Our Global 
Investment Committee favors small caps and believes this asset class is in a 
position to benefit from the substantial US fiscal stimulus. Additionally, 
small caps have historically outperformed in early stages of recovery.        

 
2.) Consider an overweight to large cap value vs. large cap growth. 

 Reduce Calvert Equity (CEYIX) by 2% and add proceeds to                             
Columbia Dividend Income (GSFTX) in the Next Gen account.  

 Rationale: Growth stocks have outperformed value since 2007 but our 
Investment Committee believes the early stages of economic recovery could 
be the catalyst that drives rotation back in value’s favor.   

 
3.) Review timing of Weinberg distributions. 
 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

1

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

March, 2017 

The Family Tree leads Maryland in preventing child abuse, connects caring communities, and 
builds strong families to improve society for generations.  It is headquartered in Baltimore City 
with satellite sites in Greater Baltimore and the National Capital Area, The Family Tree serves 
over 19,000 people annually. The Board of Directors has established a policy of investing the 
Portfolio (inclusive of both the Weinberg Endowment Fund and the Next Generation Fund) so as 
to preserve and enhance the real value of the principal and to provide The Family Tree with a 
dependable source of revenue to support its facilities and programs. 

The Finance Committee has adopted, and the Board of Directors (the Board) has approved, the 
following policies and standards. 

Investment Objectives and Policies 

Financial Objectives 

The primary, long-term investment objective of the Portfolio is to preserve the real (adjusted for 
inflation) purchasing power of the assets and income.  Specifically, The Family Tree seeks to 
ensure that the present value of the existing funds grow at a rate that will exceed inflation while 
generating a predictable stream of spendable income as determined by the Board.  The 
investment priorities are: 

A. Capital Growth 
B. Preserving Purchasing Power. 
C. Sufficient Income commensurate with Safety of principal and the spending requirements 

of the Family Tree. 
D. Protection of Principal 

The investment objective is to achieve a total annual return equal to or greater than the spending 
rate plus the rate of inflation over the long term. (A spending rate only applies to the Weinberg 
Endowment Fund. )  Total rate of return takes into consideration interest and dividend income, 
plus realized and unrealized gains.  It is recognized that the real return objective may be difficult 
to attain in every five-year period.  This performance is judged on rolling 5-year terms. 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

2

For purpose of this requirement, the Finance Committee will use the U.S. Consumer Price Index 
as published by the Department of Labor as the definition of inflation. 

Permissible Asset Classes 

The Portfolio will be diversified by both asset class and within each asset class.  The purpose of 
diversification is to limit the specific risk associated with any single security or class of 
securities.  The Finance Committee periodically reviews the overall asset allocation of the 
Endowment Fund to ensure appropriate diversification. 

Spending Policy For the Weinberg Endowment Fund 

Each year and in accordance with the Weinberg Endowment Agreement and MUPMIFA, the 
Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of The Family Tree establishes the amounts to be 
distributed or segregated from the Endowment Fund for  the subsequent year.  The spending 
amount is based on a total return policy, that is distributions are to be realized from capital gains 
(both realized and unrealized) and income (both interest and dividend income).  The distributions 
may come from the holdings of one or more of the investment advisors at the discretion of the 
Finance/Investment committee. 

Asset Allocation: The Weinberg Endowment Fund 

To achieve its investment objective, the Weinberg Endowment Fund shall be divided into two 
parts: a Fixed Income portion (target of 30% +/- 10%) and an Equity portion (target 70% +/- 
10%).  It should be noted that the division of the Endowment Fund by asset class need not 
necessarily be related to the division of assets to investment managers.  The purpose of dividing 
the Endowment Fund in this manner is to ensure that the overall asset allocation between these 
two major asset classes remains under the regular scrutiny of the Finance/Investment Committee 
and is not necessarily determined by the total sum of separate manager decisions.  The allocation 
between equity and fixed income will be reviewed by the committee at least quarterly and 
adjusted as appropriate. 

The objective of the fixed income fund (bonds and cash equivalents) is to contribute to overall 
return, to reduce overall volatility of the Endowment Fund�s returns, to provide a deflation 
hedge, and to provide cash flow to support Family Tree�s spending.  The target fixed income 
portion is 30% of the total market value (although actual percentages will fluctuate with market 
conditions).  Fixed income should not exceed 40% of total Fund's total market value and 
additional funds will be transferred to the fixed income if the allocation falls below 20%.   

The objective of the equity fund is to produce a proportionately greater contribution to total 
return than the fixed income portion.  It is recognized that the equity fund entails the assumption 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

3

of greater market variability and risk.  The target equity portion is 70% of the total market value 
(although actual percentages will fluctuate with market conditions).  Equities should not exceed 
80% of the Fund's total market value and additional funds will be transferred to the equity 
portion if the allocation falls below 60%. 

The investment returns of the total Endowment Fund will be measured against those of a target 
portfolio consisting of 35% domestic large capital equities, 10% domestic mid capital equities, 
10% domestic small capital equities and 15% international equities; and 30% domestic fixed 
income securities.   

New cash flows shall generally be allocated in such a way to rebalance the allocation in the 
direction of the target equity/fixed income ratio approved by the Board.  The Endowment Fund 
has a goal of exceeding the median of similarly managed funds. 

As a guideline to the investment managers and for the purposes of diversifying the portfolio the 
committee has developed the following sub asset target  table.  At least annually the committee 
will review actual vs target and adjust accordingly.  

Target Asset Mix Table 

   Min.   Target   Max 
Asset Class    Wt.   Wt.   Wt. 

Large Capitalization Equities  25%   35%   45% 
Mid   Capitalization Equities   5%   10%   15% 
Small Capitalization Equities  5%   10%   15% 

   
  
 International Equities   5%   15%   25% 

Total Equities   60%   70%   80% 

Domestic Fixed Income  20%   30%   40%

   (Including Cash)    

Asset Allocation: Next Generation Fund 

To achieve its investment objective, the Next Generation Fund shall be divided into two parts: a 
Fixed Income portion (target of 30% +/- 10%)  and an Equity portion(target 70% +/- 10%).  It 
should be noted that the division of the Next Generation Fund by asset class need not necessarily 
be related to the division of assets to investment managers.  The purpose of dividing the Next 
Generation Fund in this manner is to ensure that the overall asset allocation between these two 
major asset classes remains under the regular scrutiny of the Finance/Investment  Committee and 
is not necessarily determined by the total sum of separate manager decisions.  .  The allocation 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

4

between equity and fixed income will be reviewed by the committee at least quarterly and 
adjusted as appropriate. 

Since, The Next Generation Fund is not governed by an Endowment Agreement all distributions 
will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors.  

The objective of the fixed income fund (bonds and cash equivalents) is to contribute to overall 
return, to reduce overall volatility of the Next Generation Fund�s returns, to provide a deflation 
hedge, and to provide cash flow to support Family Tree�s spending.  The target fixed income 
portion is 30% (of which 10% can be cash and cash equivalents) of the total market value 
(although actual percentages will fluctuate with market conditions).  Fixed income should not 
exceed 40% of the Fund's total market value and additional funds will be transferred to the fixed 
income if the allocation falls below 20%. Cash equivalents shall account for 10%, and not 
exceed 15% of the market value.   

The objective of the equity fund is to produce a proportionately greater contribution to total 
return than the fixed income portion.  It is recognized that the equity fund entails the assumption 
of greater market variability and risk.  The target equity portion is 70% of the Fund's total market 
value (although actual percentages will fluctuate with market conditions).  Equities should not 
exceed 80% of the total market value and additional funds will be transferred to the equity 
allocation falls below 60%. 

The investment returns of the total Next Generation Fund will be measured against those of a 
target portfolio consisting of 35% domestic large capital equities, 10% domestic mid capital 
equities, 10% domestic small capital equities and 15% international equities; and 30% domestic 
fixed income securities.   

New cash flows shall generally be allocated in such a way to rebalance the allocation in the 
direction of the target equity/fixed income ratio approved by the Board.  The Next Generation 
Fund has a goal of exceeding the median of similarly managed funds. 

As a guideline to the investment managers and for the purposes of diversifying the portfolio the 
committee has developed the following sub asset target  table.  At least annually the committee 
will review actual vs target and adjust accordingly.  

Target Asset Mix Table 

   Min.   Target   Max 
Asset Class    Wt.   Wt.   Wt. 

Large Capitalization Equities  25%   35%   45% 
Mid   Capitalization Equities   5%   10%   15% 
Small Capitalization Equities   5%   10%   15% 

    



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

5

 International Equities   5%   15%   25% 

Total Equities   60%   70%   80% 

Domestic Fixed Income  20%   30%   40% 

   (Including Cash)   

Investment Manager Guidelines 

A. Equity Manager 

The performance of the small capitalization equities will be measured against the Russell 2000 
index and the large capitalization portion of the domestic equity fund performance will be 
compared to the returns of the Standard & Poor�s 500 Index.  International equity market 
performance will be measured against the MSCI EAFE Index.  The performance of any Mid Cap 
equities will be measured against the S&P Midcap 400. 

Equity managers of the Equity Portion will be expected to produce, in combination, a cumulative 
annualized total return, net of fees and commissions, that exceeds the S&P 500 index over 5 year 
rolling time periods. 

B. Fixed Income Managers 

Managers of fixed income portfolios are expected to produce returns, net of fees and 
commissions, that exceed the Bloomberg Barclay's US Aggregate Bond Index over 5 year rolling 
time periods.  Any High Yield Bond will be measured against the ML High Yield Master Index. 

C. General 

Investment Management will be delegated to specialists in each asset class.  Managers are free to 
make their individual selections without restrictions, except for the established guidelines herein.  

Investment Guidelines 

Equities 

The investment objective of equity common stocks/mutual funds is to provide for both long-term 
capital appreciation and growth in current income.  The primary objective of the Equity Portion 
is to outperform (net of fees) the S&P 500. 

Domestic equity manager(s) may select equities from the New York,  Regional Stock 
Exchanges, or the NASDAQ markets.  These holdings must represent companies meeting a 
minimum capitalization requirement of $100 million with high market liquidity.   
Managers are prohibited from investing in private placements, letter stock, and options; or from 
engaging in short sales, margin transactions or other specialized investment activities.  It is 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

6

expected that no assets will be invested in securities whose issuers have filed a petition for 
bankruptcy. 

International equity manager(s) should maintain the international portion of the Fund at a risk 
level equivalent to the international markets as a whole.  The return objective is to exceed the 
results of the MSCI Europe, Australia, and Far East (EAFE) index over a five-year time period 
net of fees and commissions.  Equity holdings may be selected from the major European, 
Canadian, Asian, Latin American and Australian exchanges. 

The above guidelines give the equity manager(s) full responsibility for security selection and 
diversification, subject to a maximum 5% (at cost) commitment of the Fund�s market value for 
an individual security, a 20% maximum for any one Mutual Fund and 20% for a particular broad 
industry sector.  The manager(s) also will have full discretion over turnover and allocation of 
equity holdings among selected securities and industry groups, within the limits described above.  

Fixed Income 

The investment objectives of fixed income instruments are to provide diversification of 
Endowment Fund assets.  Net returns are expected to exceed the  Bloomberg Barclay's US 
aggregate Bond Index annually over rolling 5-year periods. 

Investments in fixed income securities are managed actively to pursue opportunities presented by 
changes in interest rates, credit ratings, and maturity premiums.  Managers may select from 
appropriately liquid preferred stocks, corporate debt securities, obligations of the U.S. 
Government and its agencies, and securities convertible to equities.  These investments are 
subject to the following limitations: 

1. Investments in securities of a single issuer (with the exception of the U.S. 
Government and its agencies) must not exceed 5% of the market value without 
permission of the Finance Committee. 

2. High yield debt issues with a credit rating of BB or less from Standard & Poor�s 
must not exceed 20% of the fixed income portfolio. 

Managers are prohibited from investing in private placements, and from speculating in fixed 
income, or interest rate futures, or related derivative securities. 

Within the above restrictions, managers have complete discretion over timing and selection of 
fixed income securities.  However, no one fund can exceed 20% of the entire portfolio. 

Cash and Equivalents 

The investment objective of cash equivalents is to provide adequate liquidity for investment 
reserves and current operations and, from time to time, to serve as substitutes for other asset 
classes for defensive purposes in adverse investment conditions. 

1. Managers may invest in commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Treasury 
Bills, certificates of deposit, and money market funds to provide income, liquidity 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

7

for expense payments, and preservation of the account�s principal value.  All such 
assets must represent maturities of one year or less at time of purchase.  
Commercial paper assets must be rated A-1 or P-1 by Standard & Poor�s and 
Moody�s respectively.  Managers also may not invest more than 5% of the 
account�s market value in the obligations of a single issuer (without the specific 
approval of the Finance/Investment Committee).  Uninvested cash reserves should 
be kept to minimum levels.  Within the limitations mentioned above, managers 
have complete discretion to allocate and select short-term cash and equivalent 
securities. 

Other Assets 

Investments not specifically addressed by this statement are forbidden without written consent. 

Monitoring Objectives and Results 

1. All objectives and policies are in effect until modified by the Board of Directors. 

2. If at any time an Investment manager believes that any policy guideline inhibits 
investment performance, it is the manager�s responsibility to clearly communicate this 
view to the Board. 

3. Investment Managers are required to inform the Treasurer and/or The Family Tree 
Executive Director immediately of any significant changes in firm ownership, 
organizational structure, professional personnel, account structure, or fund investment 
philosophy. 

4. Portfolios will be monitored on a continual biasis for consistency in investment 
philosophy, return relative to objectives, and investment risk as measured by asset 
concentrations.  Portfolios will be reviewed by the Finance/Investment  Committee on a 
quarterly basis.   

5. The custodian shall issue monthly account statements of the transactions and holdings of 
each managed account.  The manager(s) will issue quarterly reports and will be available 
for regular meetings with the Board as desired (at least annually) to review the status of 
the account and the manager�s performance compared to objectives. 

Other 

Investment managers are provided with a written copy of this statement and it is made a part of 
the investment management contract with such manager. 

This Investment Policy has been adopted by the Finance Committee and has been approved by 
the Board of Directors. 



C:\Users\Marissa.Bennett\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I51AEYS4\Investment Policy 
Statement  March 2017 (2).docx 

8

        























































The Family Tree

Portfolio Net Worth & Performance Summary 

As of 11/30/20

Balance Balance
  

11/30/2019 11/30/2020 Month Fiscal YTD Basis Month Fiscal YTD 

Morgan Stanley Money Market Fund 200,058$          228,962$       3$            16$              

       

 

Next Generation Fund: -$                    
Morgan Stanley 1,826,100$       1,984,241$   8.2% 11.9% 19.2% 585          6,065$        

 -$                   -$                  

Total Next Generation: 1,826,100$       1,984,241$   8.2% 11.9% 19.2% 585          6,065           

-$                      

Weinberg Fund: -$                      
Morgan Stanley  1,028,349$       1,070,554$   7.9% 11.7% 23.7% 378          3,413$        

 -$                   -$                  -           

Total Weinberg: 1,028,349$       1,070,554$   7.9% 11.7% 23.7% 378          3,413           

   

TOTAL BALANCES 3,054,507$       3,283,757$   7.5% 11.0% 20.7% 966$        9,494$        

Weinberg Endowment Draw 9/20 $50,000
 *After netting for Fund Transfers, additions and Drawdowns but inclusive of Dividends and CG

 

Percent of Balance Active vs Passive Active Passive

 CYTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year
Next Generation 50% 50%
Weinberg 55% 45% Advisor Fees 17,539$        17,539$   59,869$   103,375$    

Total 52% 48% TFT Performance 6.5% 8.8% 6.2% 8.3%

TFT Performance (With Fees added back) 7.1% 9.4% 6.9% 9.2%
 

  Performance of the Blended Index in IP 7.7% 9.7% 7.8% 9.0%
  

Portfolio Allocations (Weinberg) Value $ Percent

Equity 753,644$          70%  

Fixed 316,910$          30%

Total 1,070,554$       100%   

Portfolio Allocations Next Generation   

Equity 1,470,018$       74%   

Fixed 514,223$          26%

Total 1,984,241$       100%

Portfolio Allocations Combined

Equity 2,223,662$       73%

Fixed 831,133$          27%

Total 3,054,795$       100%

Performance Summary * Dividends & Cap Gains

Portfolio Performance & Advisor Fees @ 11/30/20

Equity
73%

Fixed Income
27%

Portfolio allocations @11/30/20



Next Generation Fund Performance
FY 2021

Amount
% of 
Fund Amount % Amount % Amount %

4,727.56 0.2% (1,036.73) -18.0% (5,172.55) -52.2% 0.00 0.0%

74,527.50 3.8% 6,024.96 8.8% 5,428.74 7.9% 4,772.01 6.8%

274,064.80 13.8% 20,518.88 8.1% 25,966.84 10.5% 67,982.44 33.0%

42,114.49 2.1% 3,446.41 8.9% 7,885.13 23.0% 9,160.84 27.8%

205,694.00 10.4% 25,697.50 14.3% 37,476.28 22.3% 54,860.98 36.4%

138,890.85 7.0% (37.65) 0.0% (87.85) -0.1% 344.04 0.2%

160,574.04 8.1% 24,744.32 18.2% 32,257.13 25.1% 22,609.36 16.4%

87,506.53 4.4% 0.62 0.0% 13.29 0.0% 0.00 0.0%

113,591.24 5.7% 9,742.28 9.4% 14,294.16 14.4% 39,116.07 52.5%

194,591.59 9.8% 19,366.57 11.1% 25,070.15 14.8% 22,955.58 13.4%

107,779.37 5.4% 8,799.76 8.9% 12,277.09 12.9% 16,118.63 17.6%

69,779.00 3.5% 8,255.40 13.4% 13,129.19 23.2% 17,373.59 33.2%

227,302.46 11.5% 20,178.36 9.7% 33,774.94 17.5% 34,467.74 17.9%

280,386.21 14.1% 4,330.76 1.6% 8,252.80 3.0% 29,203.16 11.6%

2,712.32 0.1% 95.36 3.6% 208.79 8.3% 17.87 0.7%
   

1,984,241.96 100.0% 150,126.80 100.0% 210,774.13 11.9% 318,982.31 19.2%

FYTD $ Change

T. Rowe Price High Yield 
Fund

Europacific Growth Fund, 
Class F

Calvert Equity

I Shares MSCI USA Min 
Vol ETF

I Shares Edge MSCI Min 
Vol Eafe

I Shares Small Cap 600

Blackrock Total Return

I Shares ESG MSC

 Change from Basis (includes div & 
CG reinvested)

First Eagle Global I

Next Gen Fund Monthly 
Balance

Morgan Stanley Liquid 
Asset Fund

MFS International Value

Columbia Dividend Inc

Invesco Prem US Govt 

I Shares Short Treasury

ISHARES S&P MidCap 
400

Nov-20

Month Change

\\ALPHA\Data\Finance\FY 2021\Investments\Fund Performance FY 21Next Gen



Weinberg Fund Performance FY 2021

Amount % of Fund Amount % Amount % $ %

1,312 0.1% (559.94) -0.7% (2,807.23) -68.1%   

125,702 11.7% 9,411.14 8.1% 11,899.39 10.5% 43,356.24 52.7%

32,523 3.0% 2,661.52 8.9% 6,089.36 23.0% 7,130.40 28.1%

112,274 10.5% 14,026.51 14.3% 20,423.14 22.2% 38,441.78 52.1%

86,987 8.1% (23.58) 0.0% (55.02) -0.1% 367.60 0.4%

76,285 7.1% 11,755.52 18.2% 15,302.47 25.1% 12,857.99 20.3%

64,505 6.0% 5,532.33 9.4% (1,016.96) -1.6% 21,527.16 50.1%

46,849 4.4% 0.31 0.0% 7.15 0.0% 0.61 0.0%

73,766 6.9% 6,022.74 8.9% (28,498.74) -27.9% 10,679.38 16.9%

68,135 6.4% 8,060.84 13.4% 12,819.77 23.2% 25,718.10 60.6%

103,462 9.7% 10,296.98 11.1% 13,329.53 14.8% 12,205.25 13.4%

179,104 16.7% 2,766.40 1.6% 5,271.71 3.0% 18,552.40 11.6%

2,659 0.2% 93.46 3.6% 204.65 8.3% 10.79 0.4%

96,991 9.1% 8,610.24 9.7% 14,411.99 17.5% 14,707.61 17.9%
    

Totals 1,070,554.22 100.0% 78,654.47 100.0% 67,381.21 6.7% 204,995.37 23.7%

    23.7%
  

 50K Draw 9/20 1,070,554 78,654.47 7.9% 117,381.21 11.7% 205,555.31             23.7%

ISHARES S&P Mid Cap 400

Invesco Prem US Govt Money

ISHARES MSCI USA Min Vol 

MFS International Value

I Shares ESG MSC

I Shares Short Treasury BD ETF

Calvert Equity

Nov-20

Month Change

First Eagle Global I

Blackrock Total Return

Columbia Dividend

Change from Basis (includes 
div & CG reinvested)

 

FYTD Change

Weinbeg  Fund Monthly Balance

Morgan Stanley Liquid Asset Fund

I Shares Small Cap 600

 

T. Rowe Price High Yield Fund

Europacific Growth Fund, Class F

\\ALPHA\Data\Finance\FY 2021\Investments\Fund Performance FY 21Weinberg


	Inv Comm Agenda 12.7.20
	Investment Sub-committee
	AGENDA
	1. Welcome, Introductions & Mission Moment  Stephanie/Pat
	2.  Morgan Stanley Annual Review   K Strosnider and T. Alcala
	Important Dates




	Investment Committee 9.14.20 minutes
	Family Tree - Planning Discussion Materials
	Morningstar Reports
	Net Worth and Fund Performance 11.30.20
	Summary

	Next Gen Bals at 11.30.20
	Next Gen

	Weinberg Bals at 11.30.20
	Weinberg


